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From: John Friel <JFriel@HNTB.com>
To: bbfengr@aol.com

Subject: RE: Teaming for Detroit TSC Proposal
Date: Sat, 30 Jun 2007 7:50 am

Bellandra
The past Proposal had HNTB as prime with SSI (survey), Tyme & 5 Star.

If you would team with us exclusive, we could give you 20-25% and still keep the same team together. From what we hear,

this would be a good set-up. This would probably give you the ability to include Pat Lawton, Love Chatles and 2 additional
inspectors, depending on the amount of work provided by the TSC.

Please let me know what you are thinking.

Thanks
John

Enjoy the boliday.

From: bbfengr@aol.com [mailto:bbfengr@aol.com]
Sent: Fri 6/29/2007 5:35 PM
To: John Friel

Subject: Re: Teaming for Detroit TSC Proposal

What teaming obligations do you already have regarding the Jason Voigt proposal?

Belléndra Foster

From: John Friel <JFriel@hntb.com>

To: bbfengr@aol.com

Sent: Fri, 29 Jun 2007 8:42 am

Subject: Teaming for Detroit TSC Proposal

Bellandra

| understand the Detroit TSC is revising and re-advertising the Jason Voigt as-needed contract with a much larger

$ amount. Would you be interested in teaming with us on this re-submittal? | know you submitted as a prime last
time, but a revised team may be advantageous to both of us.

Please let me know if interested.
Enjoy your time off. | will be out until next Friday July 6, 2007 but will be checking email.

Thanks
John

This e-mail and any files transmitted with it are confidential and are intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to whom they are
addressed, If you are NOT the intended recipient or the person responsible for delivering the e-mail fo the intended recipient, be _advised that
you have received this e-mail in error and that any use, dissemination, forwarding, printing or copying this e-mail is strictly prohibited.

AOL now offers free email to everyone. Find out more about what's free from AOL at AOL.com.

http://webmail.aol.com/ 39997/acl/en-us/Lite/PrintMessage.aspx2user=XumAy3kNhQ&f...  11/30/2008




Bellandra Foster

From: Victor Frendo [VFrendo@HNTB.com]

Sent: Tuesday, October 26, 2010 9:18 AM

To: 'Gray, Thomas L. 'Steven Drummond, P.E."; 'bbfoster@bbfes.com’

Subject: FW: Price Proposal

Attachments: BBF Cover Sheet 10-26-10.xls; SOMAT Cover Sheet 10-26-10.xIs; FTC&H Cover Sheet
10-26-10.xIs

Importance: High

All,

For uniformity purposes I have changed the cover sheets to reflect Victor's requests, sign

the attached and overnight them to my Allen Park office.

these documents.

Thanks

Victor W. Frendo

EHNTB Michigan, Inc.
18805 Wick Road, Suite B
Allen Park, MI 48101
(313) 383-2124

Fax (313) 383-1686
Mobile (313) 790-0663
www . hntb.com

----- Original Message-----

From: Victor Judnic [mailto:judnicv@michigan.gov]
Sent: Monday, October 25, 2010 4:19 PM

To: Victor Frendo

Subject: RE: Price Proposal

Please do not make any changes to

Also, we are getting our paperwork together to rush this for the December ad-board.

»>> Victor Frendo <VFrendo@HNTB.com> 10/25/2010 4:15PM >>>

I will take care of this.
. Thanks
Vic

----- Original Message-----

From: Victor Judnie [mailto:judnicv@michigan.gov]
Sent: Monday, October 25, 2010 4:13 PM

To: Victor Frendo

Subject: Price Proposal

Importance: High

** High Priority **




Victor,

Here are some comments which require re submittal and followup info:

HNTB, Somat and BBF need to show the same project description as FTCH, any pages asking for
a project description. This contract is not limited to M-39 Reconstruction.

The HNTB Rental Vehicle cost is very high? How about we add 2 leased vehicles and if we use
them part-time MDOT is ahead? We may discuss.

The HNTB Leased Vehicle Mileage seems very high?
May we get a breakdown of the environmental tesitng equipment?
FTCH control section and job numbers need to show: various, various (no numbers)

BBF and Somat Cover Sheets: the Basis for Reimbursement and Method of Payment should be
filled out only on the right side for subconsultants.

This e-mail and any files transmitted with it are confidential and are intended solely for
the use of the individual or entity to whom they are addressed.

If you are NOT the intended recipient or the person responsible for delivering the e-mail to
the intended recipient, be advised that you have received this e-mail in error and that any
use, dissemination, forwarding, printing or copying this e-mail is strictly prohibited.




Avery Williams

From: Bellandra Foster <bbfoster@bbfes.com>

Sent: Thursday, June 07, 2012 2:02 PM

To: Thomas Weston

Cc: Leonard Becker

Subject: RE: 1-94 Detroit Analysis of Design Modifications HNTB Project Briefing teleconference -

Utility Coordination - BBFES

Tom,

| noted that the subconsultant service to be provided by BBF Engineering Services
for the 1-94 project consist of Utility Coordination. 1 am not sure whether you
were aware that my company did not receive the renewal for this prequalification
category due to lack of past work assignments awarded for MDOT projects in the
area of Utility Coordination. Please review the requirements for the provider of

this service relative to prequalification and inform me of how you would like to
proceed.

Bellandra B. Foster, Ph.D., P.E.

From: Dr. Bellandra Foster [ mailto:bbfengr@aol.com]
Sent: Thursday, June 07, 2012 1:00 PM
To: bbfoster@bbfes.com

Subject: Fwd: I-94 Detroit Analysis of Design Modifications HNTB Project
Briefing teleconference

From: Thomas Weston <tweston@HNTB.com>

To: Leonard Becker <lebecker@HNTB.com>; Daniel Enser
<DEnser@HNTB.com>; Peter Kinney <PKinney@HNTB.com>; Alysia
Lorincz <ALorincz@HNTB.com>; Tony Migaldi <tmigaldi@HNTB.com>;

Eric Morris <EMorris@HNTB.com>: Eric Polvi <EPolvi@HNTB.com>: Matt
Simon <MASimon@HNTB.com>; Shaun Winwood
<SWinwood@HNTB.com>: 'Canham, Jim' <jcanham@benesch.com>;
'Salman, John' <JSalman@benesch.com>; hhimes
<hhimes@hhengltd.com>; 'bbfengr@aol.com' <bbfengr@aol.com>;
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'bbfoster@bbfes.com’ <pbfoster@bbfes.com>; 'eaustell@comcast.net’
<eausteli@comcast.net>

Sent: Wed, Jun 6, 2012 8:13 am

Subject: 1-94 Detroit Analysis of Design Modifications HNTB Project Briefing
teleconference

To all I-94 Detroit Team members,

The HNTB Team was recently selected to provide Analysis of Design Modifications
services on the 1-94 Detroit project, from 1-96 to Conner Ave! As a member of the

HNTB Team you’re invited to participate in a briefing call this afternoon to discuss
next steps.

Background

HNTB had the opportunity to meet with the MDOT PM, Terry Stepanski, this past
Friday (6/1/12) to discuss MDOT expectations. Please review the attached
meeting minutes which summarizes Terry’s expectations for this contract. Also,
attached is additional information about the 1-94 Success Management workshop

conducted in November 2011, along with a copy of the HNTB proposal schedule
and team organizational chart.

Call Agenda:
. Review MDOT’s Expectations

« Scope
« Schedule
« Budget

« Priced Proposal Production Schedule/format
. Other?

« Next steps/Planned actions

If you are not able to join this call please let both Peter Kinney (HNTB Deputy PM)

and myself know via email, and we’ll look to schedule a separate 1:1 discussion
with you later this week.




Thanks!

Tom Weston, PE

Vice President

@ HNTB Michigan, Inc.

333 Albert Ave., Suite 333
East Lansing, MI 48823

Tele (517) 333.3330 ext. 15621
Cell (517)204.2376

Fax (517) 333.9393
www.hntb.com
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Interview Cedric Dargin
October 28,2010
10:46 a.m.

I interviewed Mrs. Bellandra Foster on Wednesday, October 28, 2010. She informed me that
Cedric Dargin had told her that she was in the top 3 during a selection team scoring meeting and
that Mark Steucher, project manager, changed her scores. I asked Mr. Dargin if this was true and

he responded, “Yes.” He said that there were two contracts under consideration, for the meeting
held on May 11, 2009;

(1) Contract 63152-72403 — Cass Avenue in the City of Pontiac, Oakland County. There
were 6 consultants considered. Full Construction Engineering

(2) Contract 63052 Job 1n0.72404 — Square Lake Road from Telegraph to Woodward. There
were 7 consultants. Full Construction Engineering

The panel consisted of Mark Steucher, Sean Kerley, Brian Turczynski, and Cedric Dargin.
The following dialogue provides detail of what transpired during the meeting and other

information to help determine the merits of Mrs. Foster’s claim of discrimination based on race
and gender, as follows:

Dargin: I was invited to sit on that selection team. Mark Steucher was the team leader., We were
just getting started when Mark got a telephone call and had to leave the team meeting because he
was scheduled for a meeting with FHWA that day, He stated that he wanted the team to proceed
without him and he would catch up with us once he returned. By the time he returned, the team
had already made their selections. Mark was gone probably about an hour and forty-five
minutes. Upon reviewing the results he was giving his opinions of the teams choices, And on
one of the contracts, the team did select BBF as number 1, the primary candidate. I do not
remember which one. Anyway, when Mark saw that he wasn’t happy with it.

Hudson: Did he say why?

Dargin: Yes. He said, “I hate her.”

Hudson: He actually said that in front of everybody?

Dargin: Yes

Hudson: What was your reaction?

Dargin: I was shocked.

Hudson: Did he say why he hated her?

Dargin: No.

Hudson: So then what happened?

Dargin: What he did was that he placed the consultants in the order that he preferred. I never
told Bellandra the part about him saying that he hated her. He did not explain why he said that.
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Hudson: Did the others react?

Dargin: They were silent. They did seem kind of surprised, but they did not say anything,
because the other two are assistant resident engineers, Sean Kearly is Mark’s assistant. And
Brian Turczynski is Dennis Coopet’s assistant, Both out of the Oakland TSC,

Hudson: What did you tell Bellandra?

Dargin: She saw that my name was on the selection report and she was wondering how things
went. Iam trying to remember what I told her, Itold her something to the effect that she might
have had a higher rating before Mark came in... I can’t recall exactly, but it was that she may
have had a higher rating,

Hudson: She remembers that she was in the top 3.

Dargin: Imay have said that, I must have said that he changed the numbers (because Bellandra
had knowledge of that).

Hudson: Did you tell anyone else about this incident?
Dargin: Yes. Itold Paul Ajegba.

Hudson: What did Paul say?

Dargin: I mentioned it to him on two different occasions., The first time it was in the hall of this
building, Metro Region Office, in passing. The next time it was a few months later. I mentioned
it in discussion in his office. The second time, he said, “Why didn’t you tell me this before? He
said, “I don’t remember you saying that.” I said, “I did mention it to you.” He said, “If you did
mentioned it to me, I either did not hear you or I did not understand or forgot, otherwise I would
have taken some type of action at that time. I believe he either didn’t remember or forgot.
Because the second time he did do something.

Hudson: What did he do?

Dargin: He asked me about all the circumstances of it. I told him and he said that he talked to
the other panel members and they have no recollection of that, He wanted me to talk to Brian and
Sean and see if they remembered what happened. Matter of fact, Sean Kerley was in the building
a day or so later and he sent him downstairs to talk to me. I asked Sean if he recalled what
happened at the selection team meeting. He said, “Involving whom?” He said, “No.” I didn’t
repeat all the essential details of what Mark said, but Sean said he didn’t recall. He asked for
information on the project and the location and said he couldn’t recall the details of the meeting.
He doesn’t recall which consultants were involved or what consultants were selected.

Dargin: And then I believe I spoke to Brian by telephone and he had no recall. At the selection
team meeting, neither Brian nor Sean were familiar with BBF. We were told to select based on
the proposals that were submitted. Both thought BBF was the best of those we had to consider.

Hudson: Why did they think BBF’s proposal was the best?
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Dargin: Because we had a list of factors such as Understanding of Project, Qualification and
Experience of Staff. These were the two main criteria,

Hudson: Were you swayed by any other factors?

Dargin: T did not tell them that T was familiar with BBF or share past experience with them.
They were completely unbiased.

Hudson: Do you know if Paul told Aanyone else?

Dargin: Iam not aware of that. It is my understanding that Paul did take some additional action.
He probably told Mia Silver the TSC Manager, From that point forward, Mark Steucher was not
allowed to sit in on any other contract selection teams.

Hudson: Do you know if Mark Steucher is friends with Victor Judnic?

Dargin: Idon’t know that. I never see them talking together.

Hudson: Have you felt any repercussion since bringing this foﬁ;vard?

Dargin: No, however, Mark doesn’t speak to me when he sees me anymore. We had a fairly
good relationship prior to that. We have served on different teams or committees prior to that,
but not on any selection teams prior to that.

Hudson: When he said he hated her, what was his affect/demeanor?

Dargin: He was going through the names. He said, “BBF.” “No.” “I hate her.”

Hudson: Did it seem like a joke?

Dargin: He wasn’t smiling or laughing, He said it in a matter of fact way.

Hudson: What was Paul’s classification at the time?

Dargin: He was Deputy Region Engineer for Metro at the time,

Hudson: Did he tell Tony Kratofil about it?

Dargin: That I do not know.

Hudson: Did they inform Greg Johnson?

Dargin: I don’t know that.

Hudson: How did you feel about this when it happened?

Dargin: I felt that it was something that was not fair and figured I had to tell someone. Itold Paul
within that week, before the week was over,

Hudson: Did you recognize that was discrimination?
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Dargin: I thought so.
Hudson: Had you ever thought Mark was discriminatory before.

Dargin: Iknew him to be outspoken. Inever worked directly in an office with him.,

Hudson: Was Mark ever talked to about it?

Dargin: He was prohibited from being on any more consultant selection teams. I heard he was in
some additional trouble, :

Hudson: Do you think BBF has been given a fair shake?

Dargin: In that particular instance no.

Hudson: Are you aware if any other engineers who feel that way about her?
Dafgin: I have never heard anyone else express something like that.
Dargin: She has told me different things that have happened.

Hudson: When did you tell Bellandra?
Dargin: It was sometime after I discussed it with Paul, I would guess it was within a month of
that time. It was after I had spoken with Paul. And the reason I told her was that since I hadn’t

heard anything else from Paul, I thought maybe nothing was being done, or was not sure anything
was being done,

Hudson: When did you know they had removed him from selection teams?

Dargin: Sometime after we had our second conversation and after Paul had conducted his
investigation. So between that time is when I told Bellandra, but I didn’t tell her every thing that
had happened. Iwasn’t sure how much I could or should say.

Dargin: She had mentioned to me within the last several years... [Things that have happened and
how she felt about it]. Iwas one of the resident engineers working out of the Detroit TSC when I

was replaced by Victor Judnic. And then shortly after that for the last few years she has
mentioned different things, '

Hudson: Such as?

Dargin: She told me that either Victor said it to her or to somebody else, “I don’t think a black
woman should make that much money.”

Hudson: She told you this when?

Dargin: A few years ago. Sometime after I had left the Detroit TSC. It was sometime between
2003 and 2004, She said she was having a difficult time down there because she would ask for
planning meetings and he would refuse to meet with her, I thought that was something that was
regularly done with the consultants. Also, she mentioned something about the MI10
reconstruction project, around 3 years ago, where she was selected as a prime consultant, that
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Victor either did or attempted to cut her contract in half and give some of the work to another
consultant, Up to that time I had no idea that he had any attitudes like that.

Dargin: In 2003, I was promoted from resident engineer to region construction engineer, I was
on the interviewed selection team that got him hired.

Dargin: Also something else she said, “Some of her employees were not very well liked at the
Detroit TSC — black male employees.” I recall back then, several years ago, where she was
attempting to get some work out of the Taylor TSC, someone from Taylor made a negative
comment about Charles Covington, about his quality of work. 1read that and I was surprised, and
I stated that I had the opposite experience that Charles Covington was a good worker, who did
good work and worked independently. As a result of that I believe that he was accepted for
whatever work he was trying to get at the time. I did write an email on that. I may be able to

retrieve that. It was in response to an email that was sent around saying disparaging things about
him,

Hudson: Who sent that email?
Dargin: I think it was someoné from the Taylor TSC. It was somebody from construction. I can’t

recall the name. Because Bellandra mentioned that she was having difficulty getting work at the
Taylor TSC at the time.

Dargin:- I know-that she has been having difficulty back-from-1997; since-she-first started.—She-is-

very qualified, acts in a professional manner, and has well qualified staff. Dargin: I believe her
first consultant contract was with me in 1997. I was a resident engineer, prior to us being
organized into TSCs, so what happened was that I was the primary resident doing contract work
in Detroit. We were short staffed as were quite often, and we were told to advertise for consultant
assistance. At that time BBF was the only consultant that applied. Back at that time, we knew
that other consultants didn’t want to work in the city of Detroit. We heard that Lansing
announced that BBF had the contract, and so I recall that, I told Denoris Everett, now resident
engineer at Macomb TSC. So anyway, BBF did start work, and when I came back to work after a
few days off, Den Everett said he received a call from Lansing stating that we had to send the
BBF staff home. Which Den did, The reason being was that the contract was not yet authorized.
We were not familiar with that process, and since we were not familiar with the process, Kathy
Hulley said to send them home until we have it authorized. I spoke to Kathy who said that she
understood that the contractor had started to work, and she could send another consultant until
BBF is authorized for that contract, I said, "No." We will just wait. I thought, “How could they
get another consultant into work when no one was authorized?” 1 believe Kathy wanted to bring
in HRC. Then what happened after BBF started working on our project, I remember for quite a
long time that her payments were slow from Lansing. She would submit the invoices to us and
we would promptly submit them to Lansing, and it would be months before she would get paid. 1
asked her how she survived. Most of her staff were retired MDOT employees and she said that
she would pay them when she gets paid and that is how she survived. She told me that she was
making phone calls to executive people in Lansing on a regular basis,

Hudson: What people?

Dargin: Well, one name I recall is Jim Culp. She made numerous calls to Kathy Hulley. I do
know that Kathy was swamped at the time. I don’t know how long it took others to get paid. It

was a new process that started up. So, I don’t know who all she called, but she was calling
everybody so that she could get paid.
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June 2010 — Current Concern

Dargin to Hudson: Are you aware of the issues she had at the Detroit TSC?

Hudson: [Not sure what concerns he meant]

Dargin: She was a sub consultant down at the Detroit TSC. Her invoices were not being
processed in a timely manner by URS — Mike Guter, She made complaints to the TSC, then to
Paul Ajeba and Tony Kratofil. Paul wanted me and Gian Taneja to go down to the TSC and
interview Victor Judnic and Mike Guter (URS). And he wanted us to make a report to him what
we saw. It is my understanding she made the complaint to Paul and Tony.

Hudson: What was the result of your meeting?

Dargin: The result was that we did interview them. We had some prepared questions — me and
Gian Taneja. And so, Gian gave me his notes and together I combined them with my notes and
we sent a report to Paul. The conclusion was that the consultant, URS, did experience some
payment delays within the MDOT payment system, and payment problems with the URS
payment process caused further delays. Mike Guter suggested in the future that BBF invoices
could be processed faster if they were sent to the URS office in Texas (sub consultant invoices
would be processed faster in Texas). '

Hudson: And this was how long ago? End of June 30, 2010,
Hudson: Do we have concerns about other consultants getting paid?

Dargin: A few years ago we did, because some of them worked beyond their budget, and then
would request back payment from MDOT, then MDOT decided to put a stop to this ~ they would
have to track their budget. They set a date and said that anyone going beyond their date would
not get paid. Thaven’t heard any other... except, one other is Delora Hall (black female). She is
a PR consultant in Oakland and Macomb Counties. She complained of slow payments being an
MDOT sub-consultant, this year.

Hudson: What was the outcome? She said that she thinks that MDOT needs to streamline their
process because it takes up to 120 days and that should be stream lined some how. She could
have gone bankrupt but she borrowed money from family members, She said she talked to
people in Lansing and talked to Myron Frierson. And she said that he tried to help her. He
looked at all the invoices. She said payment was being hung up by MDOT. Myron reviewed
payment records with her and said MDOT had paid the prime, but she had not received the
money from the prime. Officially we do not deal with the subs because they are not under
contract to us per se. Later it was determined that the prime had not been paid by MDOT and
Miyron had the wrong information. '

Hudson: And was she subsequently paid?

Dargin: I called Carol Rademacher and she said that the prime was expected to be paid by
MDOT on October 14, 2010,

Hudson: Do we know if Ms, Hall has been paid to date?
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Dargin: That I do not know,

Dargin: The reason I get involved in this is that I have been designated as the DBE technical
representative. We reorganized since we lost our DBE consultant technicians, We did have
working for us two consultants, or two technicians who had contracts through MDOT, who were
former MDOT employees - Larry Douglas and Love Charles. Love Charles did double duty.
He retired out of Detroit TSC. I heard that he was not received very well. He worked for me
prior to his retirement and then as a consultant and he was very efficient.

Hudson: Why did he have a hard time down there?

Dargin: I don’t have direct information, but what I hear is that Victor didn’t care for him.
Hudson: Who did you hear that from?

Dargin: Bellandra.

Hudson: Did she go into detail?

Dargin:  She said something about Victor complaining about the quality of his work...
something along those lines. As a result of using fewer consultants within the past year, that
function of DBE Technical Services was transferred to me and my staff. I wanted to keep both
- Love-Charles and-Larry. Douglas. - : :

Hudson: The decision came from whom?

Dargin: I don’t know who made the ultimate decision. The news was brought to us by Paul
Ajegba. The reason I wanted to keep those two guys is because they had been doing it since the
80’s and they were good at it. The two that are named on the DBE contact list for Metro are
fairly new to the DBE Program and haven’t been trained in it, and they have other duties that
consume 95% of their time, so they don’t have a lot of time to spend on DBE Technical

Assistance. Jeffery Grossklaus and I primarily perform the DBE technical services along with
our other duties.

Hudson: What is the function of the DBE Technical Services consultant?

Dargin: They are an advocates for the DBE Program, primarily working with DBE contractors
and assisting them with problems they may experience in preparing bids or once they get on the
project in helping them to resolve any problems they may experience on the project such as,
prompt pay, technical issues with plans or specifications of the contract; also we resolve issues
that arise between the resident/project engineer and the DBE contractors, DBE Technical
Assistance is a requirement of the federal regulations. Additionally, we participate in workshops
sponsored by the Office of Business Development in training exetcises for the DBEs. So
anyway, we’ve been assisting lots of DBE contractors with all kinds of issues.

Hudson: Do the DBE’s know that they can complain under Title VI?
Dargin: Iam not sure if they understand that or not?

Hudson: Ithink that would come under Pat Collins. Ihave been assisting the program since back
in the 80’s and I don’t hear any conversation about Title VI. 'We had an FHWA review on
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AARA projects this past summer and it revealed that MDOT resident engineers are not
lknowledgeable about the DBE Program. Non-DBEs and DBEs are experiencing prompt pay

problems. There is one that recently went out of business complaining about prompt payment
issues.

Hudson: Who was that?

Dargin: It was Coleman Heavy Construction Inc. He had two complaints with prompt pay. One
out of Macomb, on M3 - Gratiot Avenue, and his other was on local government project in
University Region, Plymouth Road. I couldn’t give him much help. Based on the investigation,
he had not submitted timely, certified payrolls, He ran into cash flow problems and eventually
had to walk off of both projects. Now if he were more knowledgeable about the process, he
would have not had that problem. DBEs are educated through workshops. He should -have
contacted DBE resources, but didn’t. I heard he was an MBA but he didn’t have much
construction experience, He needed some training and may not have taken advantage of it,

Dargin: Mr. Dargin called me from his cell phone on October 29, 2010, to correct the
information on Coleman Heavy Construction. Mr, Dargin left me a voicemail stating that Mr,
Coleman Brown was the contractor but he was not a DBE. He refused to join the DBE Program.

E-mail dated October 29, 2010, from Cedric Dargin

I.would-like to-make-a correction to-my-interview with-you-yesterday. Previously;-I stated-that- -

Coleman Heavy Construction Co. was a DBE Contractor, I do recall now that in past
conversations with Coleman Brown, President of the company, that he stated that he refuses to
join the DBE program because he thought that there were certain benefits from not being a DBE
Contractor. He perceived the benefits for example, as being able to receive direct help from a
prime contractor, which is the Program restricts.

Not being a DBE member may have greatly contributed to his misunderstanding of how
contractors get paid. Particularly, that certified payrolls must be submitted to the prime contractor
then to the Engineer to be eligible for payment,

I have never met Mr. Brown in person but we have had numerous telephone conversations about
his difficulties in getting paid on the two projects previously mentioned.
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Interview Marilyn Caldwell

I interviewed Marilyn Caldwell on November 9, 2010, at approximately 9:00 p.m., by
phone, Mrs. Caldwell has been Mr. Victor Judnic’s secretary for the past 5 years.
Mrs. Caldwell provided the following information:

I asked Mrs. Caldwell if she recalled talking with Dr. Bellandra Foster about
Victor Judnic in 2006; more specifically did she recall the following conversation that
Dr. Foster said she had with her, to wit:

“In 2006 Victor’s secretary, Marilyn Caldwell overheard him make a comment,
She told me he said [that], “No woman or no black woman should be making
money like this.,” “I have a note to the file,” She said she confronted him on it
and said she told him, “You act like she makes up the rules here.,” “You don’t
have problems when other firms submit i mvomes, but you have a problem with
everything she submits.”

At first Mrs. Caldwell stated that she can’t be 100% sure. She said, I “kinda-sorta”
remember. Mrs. Caldwell was hesitant and said, “I know he says a lot of things.” I asked
Mrs. Caldwell if she had spoken to Dr, Foster recently. She said, “I can’t say what month
— it was warm outside.” I was standing by the truck. I sensed Mrs. Caldwell’s reluctance

to talk to me. I again asked her if she could verify Dr, Foster’s allegation, and read it to
her again.

Mrs. Caldwell recalled part of the conversation with Mr. Judnic. She remembered that he
stated that, “No woman should be making money like that,” but added that she did not
know if he said black woman. However, since Dr, Foster was the only black female
consultant firm that Mr. Judnic was using, she surmised it was BBF that he was referring
to.  She did not recall saying, “You don’t have problems when other firms submit
invoices, but you have a problem with everything she submits,” * Rather, Mrs, Caldwell
said, “I told him she doesn’t make the rules. You shouldn’t blame her.” I asked if
Mr. Judnic responded to her statement. Did he get upset when you challenged him?
Mzs. Caldwell said that he did not and she just walked away. I asked her if she was
surprised by what Mr. Judnic said, and she responded, “I was surprised.” She went on to
say that this is America and everyone is entitled to make a living, She said that it is not
easy being female [in the construction business].

I asked Mrs, Caldwell where she and Mr, Judnic were standing when the comments were
made. She said that they were standing in the hall way outside of his office.
Mrs. Caldwell did not recall if others were present at the time or if she might have been
coming out of his office. She said that she really didn’t think anything about it, but
added, “T just know that she is being treated unfairly.” Mrs. Caldwell said that Bellandra
has a right to file a complaint. She said that she has heard some of Victor’s assistants
making comments about BBF. Mrs. Caldwell has heard them say, when BBF did not get
a contract, that she would get the next one, when in Mrs, Caldwell’s opinion she was
qualified and should have gotten the one under consideration. She said that they were
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trying to rate her low. Prior to Mr. Judnic’s arrival, BBF was getting contracts. She said
that they talked about Love Charles, who was doing a great job in his consultant capacity.
She also shared that she has heard some of the assistants to Mr. Judnic say, “We’ll give
her a contract just to shut her up.” Mrs. Caldwell said that she would ask his assistants,
Sharleta Paris, Steve Griffith, and others, why BBF was not selected, She said that
Steve Griffith would say that he doesn’t want to get involved.

I asked Mis. Caldwell if she shared Mr, Judnic’s comment with Dr, Foster, and she said
that she did tell Bellandra, but doesn’t recall when. I asked if she had spoken to her
recently. She said that it could have been the last time she was in the office [Summer
2010]. Dr. Foster asked her if she would make a statement.

[Closer to her own circumstances] Mrs. Caldwell said that she just wants to work in
peace. She said that sometimes Mr. Judnic “gives me hell.” She said that staff walks
around on pins and needles since he came. They have to consider whether he is having a
bad day or not. Mrs. Caldwell said that at times Mr. Judnic can be mean. She said that
she has never had a supervisor yell at her, and on one occasion she went to Rita Screws
and complained. She felt that she was being harassed daily, but then it stopped. She

recalled another occasion when Victor yelled at her about Tia Schnee’s time sheet. She
had forgotten to enter it.

I asked Mrs, Caldwell if BBF was still getting contracts. She affirmed that she was. She
said that Mr. Judnic liked working with Pat Laughten who is an employee of BBF.

Mrs. Caldwell was aware of the complaint that BBF filed. She stated that she did not
think that Mr. Judnic meant any “harm-harm” when he made the statement cited above. I
asked her what “harm-harm” meant. She said, “It is just the way he is. “Some men feel

that women shouldn’t [be in this field].” “They should be at home.” “It’s kind of like
being a male chauvinist.”
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Michigan Department
of Transportation
5100D (07/07)

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL COVER SHEET

SR

Exhibit D

MDOT PROJECT MANAGER
Mr. Victor Judnic, P.E.

JOB NUMBER (JN)
Various

CONTROL SECTION (CS) RFP DUE DATE

Various 9/10/09
DESCRIPTION OF WORK
MDOT Detroit TSC As-Needed Construction Engineering Services
PRIME CONSULTANT
BBF Engineering Services, P.C.
ADDRESS
719 Griswold Street, Suite 820
CITY STATE ZIP CODE
Detroit Mi 48226
PHONE NO. FAX NO.
(313) 967-9652 (248) 262-5777
CONTACT EMAIL

Bellandra B. Foster, Ph.D., P.E.

bbfengr@aol.com

FEDERAL IDENTIFICATION NUMBER
38-3362264-

[ INDIVIDUAL OR SOLE PROPRIETORSHIP 1 CORPORATION
[JPARTNERSHIP

LICENSED TO OPERATE IN THE STATE OF MICHIGAN

Y1 YEs

DBE PARTICIPATION GOAL (if applicable)

} NO 0 %
CERTIFIED AS A DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (DBE) IN MICHIGAN
YES NO S - _ e
WORK TYPE OR DBE
SUBCONSULTANT ADDRESS/PHONE PREQUALIFICATION %OF YES NO
CLASSIFICATION CONTRACT
. 27777 Franklin Road
URS Corporation Great Lakes Suite 2000 Constr. Engg. 10% [ ]
Southfield, Ml 48034
S ing Soluti [ 211 West Park Street :
urveying solutions, inc. St. Johns, Mi 48879 Constr. Staking 10% ]
. ; First National Building ]
Somat Engineering, Inc 660 Woodward Avenue, Suite 2430 Materials Testing 10% [l
Detroit, Ml 48226
PRIME CONSULTANT SIGNATURE (SIGNER MUST HAVE CONTRACTING AUTHORITY) DATE

9/9/09




Identification of Prime and Sub Vendors

PROJECT: MDOT Detroit TSC Consultant Construction Engineering Services including project inspection,
construction staking, technical assistance, engineering assistance, quality control testing and reporting,
measurement, computation and documentation of quantities, reporting and record keeping and assistance

in close out of project documentation. Various projects to be assigned by the MDOT Project Engineer
Manager, Victor Judnic, P.E. :

Anticipated Contract Start Date: November, 2009
Anticipated Contract Completion Date: November, 2011

REQUIRED PROPOSAL INFORMATION:
IDENTIFICATION OF PRIME VENDOR AND SUB-VENDORS

VENDOR CAPACITY CERTIFICATION DOCUMENT 5100G

CONFLICT OF INTEREST STATEMENT 5100I

DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (DBE) INFORMATION

Prime Vendor

Primary Prequalification Classifications:
Bituminous Pavement Inspection
Portland Cement Concrete Inspection and

Givi ngineering TeSting Services-
BBF Epgineering Services, P.C. Secondary Prequalification Classifications:
719 Griswold Street Aggregate Testing
Suite 820 A X .
Detroit, M| 48226-3311 Engineering Assistance

Technical Assistance

Phone: 313.967.9652

248.262.5777 _
Fax; 248.262.5778 Approved Negotiator.

Bellandra B. Foster, Ph.D., P.E. — President

Contact: Bellandra B. Foster, Ph.D., P.E. Email: bbfoster@bbfes.com

Email: bbfoster@bbfes.com

. BBF Engineering Services, PC is incorporated
Federal 1.D. Number. 38-3362264 and licensed to operate in the State of Michigan.

BBF Engineering Services, PC is an MDOT
Certified DBE.

MDOT Detroit TSC As-Needed Construction Engineering Services
Project Engineer Manager — Victor Judnic, P.E. Due 9/10/09



Sub Vendor

URS

URS Corporation Great Lakes
27777 Franklin Road
Suite 2000

Southfield, MI 48034

Phone: 248.204.5900
Fax: 248.204.5901

Contact: Michael Guter, P.E.
Email: mike_guter@URSCorp.com

Federal I.D. Number: 38-1776252

Primary Prequalification Classifications:
Bituminous Pavement Inspection
Portland Cement Concrete Inspection and
Testing Services

Secondary Prequalification Classifications:
Aggregate Testing
Engineering Assistance - -
Technical Assistance: ..

Approved Negotiator:
Theresa Petko, AICP - Vice President
Email: theresa_petko@URSCorp.com

URS Corporation Great Lakes is incorporated
and licensed to operate in the State of Michigan

Sub Vendor

2 f (o

Surveying Solutions, lnco‘rﬂborated
211 West Park Street
St. Johns, Ml 48879 ...

Phone: 989.227.9212
Fax: 989.224.2729

Contact: Anthony Thelen, P.S.
E-malil: tthelen@ssi-mi.com
Cell: 989.737.2756

Federal .D. Number: 38-3620839

Surveying Solutions, Incorporated is an
MDOT Cert(iﬁed DBE.

Primary Prequalification Classifications:
NA ‘

Secondary Prequalification Classifications:
Construction Staking

Apbroved Negotiatbrs: i
Anthony D. Thelen, P.S. - Lead Project Surveyor
Email: tthelen@ssi-mi.com

Jeffrey D. Bartlett, P.S.
Project Surveyor
Email: jbartlett@ssi-mi.com

Surveying Solutions is incorporated and licensed
to operate in the State of Michigan.

MDOT Detroit TSC As-Needed Construction Engineering Services
Project Engineer Manager - Victor Judnie, P.E. Due 9/10/09




Sub Vendor

SOMAT Engineering, Incorporated
First National Building

660 Woodward Avenue, Suite 2430
Detroit, MI 48226

Branch Office: SR
26445 Northline Road
Taylor, Ml 48180

Phone: 313.963.2721
Fax: 313.963.2736

Contact: Steve Drumrri"'o'nd‘, P.E.
E-mail: sdrummond@somateng.com

Federal 1.D. Number: 38-2639838

"| SOMAT Engineering, Incorporated is an
MDOT Certified DBE.

Primary Prequalification Classification:
Bituminous Pavement Inspection
Portland Cement Concrete Inspection and
Testing Services

Secondary Prequalification Classifications:
- Aggregate Testing T
- Density Inspection and Testing =
' Engineering Assistance ™ "
Technical Assistance

Approved Negotiator, o
G. Ramanujam (Ram) - President |
Email: ram@somateng.com

SOMAT  Engineering is incorporated and
licensed to operate in the State of Michigan, |

Capacity Document 5100G is following representing the staff from the following team members:

+ BBF Engineering Services, P.C.

+ URS Corporation Great Lakes

+ Surveying Solutions, Incorporated
+ SOMAT Engineering, Incorporated

Other Interests/Conflict of Interest S‘z‘az“emem‘

The following firms as a member of this team do not represent any conflicts of interest with the services to
be provided as outlined in the MDOT Request for Proposals. Conflict of Interest Document 51001 follows.,

+ BBF Engineering Services, P.C.

¢ URS Corporation Great Lakes

¢ Surveying Solutions, Incorporated
+ SOMAT Engineering, Incorporated

MDOT Detroit TSC As-Needed Construction Engineering Services
Project Engineer Manager ~ Victor Judnic, P.E. Due 9/10/09



_Disadvantaged Business Enterprise and Contract Percentages

BBF Engineering Services, P.C.
MDOT Certified DBE
Estimated Contract Percentage — 70%

URS Corporation Great Lakes, Incorporated
Estimated Contract Percentage — 10%

Surveying Solutions, Incorporated
MDOT Certified DBE
Estimated Contract Percentage — 10%

SOMAT Engineering, Incorporated
MDOT Certified DBE
Estimated Contract Percentage ~ 10%

The MDOT DBE Goal for this vendor request for proposals is listed as N/A.
The total estimated DBE percentage for this team is 90%.

PROPOSAL INFORMATION FOR EVALUATION SCORING:

A1, UNDERSTANDING OF SERVICE: Pages 1-8

A2.. INNOVATIONS: NOT.REQUESTED AS PART OF THIS RFP

A3. SAFETY PROGRAM: NOT REQUESTED AS PART OF THIS RFP

B. QUALIFICATIONS OF TEAM:
B1. STRUCTURE OF THE PROJECT TEAM: Pages 9-12
B2. STAFF SERVICE EXPERIENCE
KEY STAFF RESUMES — SEE EXHIBIT A
B3. ORGANIZATION CHART: PAGE 13

C. PAST PERFORMANCE: Pages 14-18
D. QUALITY ASSURANCE/QUALITY CONTROL; PAGES 18-19

E. LOCATION OF SERVICE PERSONNEL: Page 19

MDOT Detroit TSC As-Needed Construction Engineering Services
Project Engineer Manager — Victor Judnic, P.E. Due 9/10/09



Michigan Department

of Transportation CONFLICT OF INTEREST STATEMENT

51001 (07/07)

MDOT PROJECT MANAGER JOB NUMBER (JN)

Mr. Victor Judnic, P.E. Various

CONTROL SECTION (CS)

Various

DESCRIPTION IF NO JN/CS

MDOT Detroit TSC As-Needed Construction Engineering Services

BBF ENGINEERING SERVICES, P.C. (

Consultant) certifies that it has read and understands the fql,_loWin_g:

directly or indirectly any such interest in connection with the project, that would conflict or appear to conflict
in any manner with the performance of the services under this Contract. "Affiliate" means a corporate
entity linked to the CONSULTANT through common ownership. The CONSULTANT and its Affiliates
agree not to provide any services to a construction contractor or any entity that may have an adversarial
interest in a project for which it has provided services to the DEPARTMENT. The CONSULTANT and its
Affiliates agree to disclose to the DEPARTMENT all other interests that the prime or sub consultants have
or contemplate having during each phase of the project. The phases of the project include, but are not
limited to, planning, scoping, early preliminary engineering, design, and construction. In all situations, the
DEPARTMENT will decide if a conflict of interest exists. If the DEPARTMENT concludes that a conflict of
interest exists, it will inform the CONSULTANT and its Affiliates. If the CONSULTANT and its Affiliates

choose to retain the interest constituting the conflict, the DEPARTMENT may terminate the Contract for
cause in accordance with the provisions stated in this Contract,

Certification for Subject Project. Based on the foregoing, the Consultant certifies that no conflict exists with

the subject project for it, its Affiliates, and any sub-consultants.

Disclosure of Conflict with Subject Project. Based on the foregoing, the Consultant certifies that the
following conflict exists with the subject project for it, its Affiliates, and/or any sub-consultants:

CONSULTANT AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE (Must be signed by a representative with contracting authority)

DATE

4/%1@/@\ / 7{1% September 9, 2009

The CONSULTANT and its Affiliates agree not to have any public or private interest, and shallnot acquire -



Michigan Department
of Transportation
5100G (12/07)

CERTIFICATION OF AVAILABILITY OF

KEY PERSONNEL

Page 1 of 2

MDOT PROJECT MANAGER
Mr. Victor Judnic, P.E.

JOB NUMBER (JN)
Various

CONTROL SECTION (CS)
Various

DESCRIPTION IF NO JN/CS

MDOT Detroit TSC As Needed Construction Engineering Services

BBE ENGINEERING SERVICES, P.C.

and have sufficient time to provide the services as outlined in the Req

(Consultant) certifies that the following key personnel are available
uest for Proposal for the life of the above project.

NAME TITLE , AVERAGE PHONE NUMBER

~NUMBEROF - | . - . . o

‘| HOURS PER .| '~ i

- WEEKON - '

PROJECT
Bellandra B. Foster, Ph.D., P.E. Vendor Project Mar. 10 (313) 967-9652
Patrick Lawton, B.S. Technical Asst./Insp. 40 (313) 967-9652
Allen Hinchcliff Inspector 40 (313) 967-0652
Ray Stewart Insp./Technical Asst. 40 (313) 967-9652
Willis Stewart Insp. Technical Asst. 40 (313) 967-9652
Charles Latimer Inspector 40 (313) 967-9652
-Asia-Denson;B.S: - —— - - ‘| Inspector—— 40 T (313) 967-9652

LaKeisha Hamilton, B.S. Inspector 40 (313) 967-9652
Chad Godbout Inspector 40 (3{3) 967—9652
Jason Jackson Inspector 40 (313) 967-9652
Michael Wilks Inspector 40 (313) 967-9652
Michael Guter, P.E. Engineering/Tech Asst-|- 10- (616) 574-8477
Jason Fisher, P.E. Engineering/Tech Asst. 10 (248) 204-4923
Peter Bugar, E.LT. Inspector 40 (248) 204-4942
Anthony Thelen, P.S. Lead Surveyor 30 (989) 227-9212
Jeffrey D. Bartlett, P.S. QA/QC Surveyor 5 (989) 846-6601
Randall G. Héiss, L.S.1.T. ‘Construction Surveyor 40 (989) 227-9212
David J. LaCross, L.S.1.T. Construction Surveyor 40 (989) 227-9212
Steven Drummond, P.E. Materials QA/QC 2 (313) 963-2721
Richard Anderson, P.E. Materials QA/QC 2 (313) 963-2721

Any changes in key personnel, including the unavailability of key personnel, must be noted

approved by MDOT by signing form on page 2.

on Page 2 of this form and

st/ ave contracting authority)
Z,Zl 5

DATE ?/ > ?

CONSULTANT AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE (
/ 7



Mig??g’;;ﬁi}?ﬁm CERTIFICATION OF AVAILABILITY OF Page 1 of 2
5100G (12/07) KEY PERSONNEL

MDOT PROJECT MANAGER JOB NUMBER (JN) CONTROL SECTION (CS)
Victor Judnic Various Various
DESCRIPTION IF NO JN/CS

MDOT Detroit TSC - As Needed Construction Engineering Services

BBF ENGINEERING SERVICES, PC (Consultant) certifies that the following key personnel are available
and have sufficient time to provide the services as outlined in the Request for Proposal for the life of the above project.

NAME : TITLE AVERAGE PHONE NUMBER
NUMBER OF e
HOURS PER" :
WEEKON- -
PROJECT
Donald Cavins Inspector/Tester 40 (313) 963-2721
Donald Lowry Inspector/Tester 40 (313) 963-2721
Matthew Allor Tester ' 40 (313) 963-2721

Any changes in key personnel, including the unavailability of key personnel, must be noted on Page 2 of this form and
approved by MDOT by signing form on page 2.

CONSULTANT AU THORJZED S,I NATURE (Sjgher mu \/e/;,contracting authority) DATE ?, o e
0 fa. /3 72ty 07

/



Understanding of Service
General -

The Team presenting this proposal consists of the following consulting firms: BBF Engineering Services
(Prime), URS Corporation Great Lakes, Surveying Solutions, Incorporated and Somat Engineering. We
understand that MDOT is requesting as-needed construction engineering services which include construction
inspection, technical assistance, construction staking, quality control testing and reporting, measurement,
computation and documentation of quantities, reporting and record keeping for project closeout to assist the
MDOT staff with various construction projects assigned to the Detroit TSC and Metro Region. We wil
perform this work in accordance with the Scope of Services provided.by MDOT and at the direction, of Mr. .
Victor Judnic, The MDOT Project Engineer Manager, or his designees, As requested in_the'scope. of.
services, the Project Team will provide a minimum of the requested number of inspectors, in addition to
materials testing staff and surveyors available to work on various construction projects assigned by Mr. Victor
Judnic for a two year period between November, 2009 and November 2041. Our Team also understands that
we will funish all services and labor necessary to furnish the as needed Construction Services described
herein, All materials, equipment, supplies and incidentals necessary to complete these services, other than
those designated to be furnished by MDOT, will be supplied by Our Team. We will coordinate all
assignments through the MDOT PEM Mr. Victor Judnic, P.E. or his designee. S
. The BBF Engineering Services Team is fully experienced and has the staffing capability to perform the
Construction Engineering “as needed” services for the MDOT Detroit TSC Projects. The services include
providing personnel to perform a maximum of 30,000 hours of construction engineering and related services
for various MDOT Detroit TSC projects. All of the key staff proposed within this Team have MDOT project

Our team provides staff experienced in MDOT road and bridge construction in addition to a comprehensive
background oriented in MDOT Construction Engineering, Construction Inspection, Technical and
Engineering Assistance, Construction Testing, and Surveying procedures. Al of the team members have
proven ability in responding to aggressive project schedules. We understand the scope, structure and
requirements of the MDOT as needed Construction Engineering and Inspectiori contracts from having
successfully completed them for the Detroit TSC in past years. This team of locally-based personnel has
accumulated hundreds of years of MDOT construction engineering and_inspection_experience--We  wil

provide you with efficient project operations, appropriate expertise and sufficient manpower to complete your
projects on time and within budget. BBF Engineering Services has the distinction of having one of the lowest
overhead rates among MDOT professional enginesring consultants. This is extremely important at the

present time within the state of Michigan due to the need for governmental agencies to get the best service
based upon qualifications and fiscal responsibility.

The Team presented within this proposal will agree to provide, to the satisfaction of the Department,
Construction Engineering and Inspection As-Needed Services in the areas which may include roadway
construction, bridge construction, communications infrastructure construction, traffic signal construction,
roadway lighting, roadway signage construction, underground utility construction, signal; sign and pavement
marking construction, CPM construction and general landscaping on an as-needed basis as directed by the
MDOT Project Engineer Manager. The assigned staff wil provide reporting, measurement, computation, and
documentation requirements as directed by the Project Engineer Manager or his designee as referenced in
the MDOT Specifications for Construction, plans, proposal, the MDOT Construction Manual, the MDOT
Materials Sampling Guide, Materials Source Guide, Materials Quality Assurance Procedures Manual,

Density Control Handbook and all other applicable references, guidelines, and procedures manuals and to
industry standards.
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Understanding of Service
Construction Engineering

The Vendor Coordinator (Bellandra Foster) shall contact the MDOT PEM (Victor Judnic) prior to beginning
any project assignments for this contract. The staff within this team has the experience to fulfill the
requested requirements to attend any meetings pertaining to design, project partnering, preconstruction
issues, progress meetings, utility and permits issues and post construction meetings as requested by the
MDOT PEM or his designee. The Consultant shall furnish all services and labor necessary to conduct and
complete the As-Needed Services described herein. The BBF Engineering Services team shall also furnish
all materials, equipment, office supplies, and incidentals necessary to perform the engineering, inspection,
testing and surveying services (other than those designated in writing within the Request for Proposals to be -
furnished by the Department).The Consultant shall funish laptop computers and wireless internet cards for
staff as deemed necessary by the MDOT PEM. In addition, the Consultant will be required to furnish and
maintain three digital cameras for project photo documentation. The MDOT PEM wil provide review and
approval regarding the type of digital camera to purchase and the assignment of the cameras. The
Consultant shall supply and wear personal safety equipment in accordance with MDOT policy. while on any
This proposal lists key staff categories in accordance with the requests of the Project Engineer Manager
PEM) within the Request for Proposals. The Team structure is also organized to show supplemental staff
which details the depth of experience on this team. We understand the PEM will reserve the right to adjust
the staff recommendations in the manner he deems as necessary since many of the proposed inspection
staff are experienced in MDOT road and bridge construction engineering and inspection.
- The-BBF Engineering-Services - team-will- provide -the-following- Construction Engineering; Inspection ‘and -
Technical Assistance services as requested by the MDOT Project Engineer Manager. Our proposed staff is
highly qualified to perform these duties. These services shall include, but not be limited to the following:
o Provide technical assistance to the MDOT Project Manager for review, analysis and decision
regarding Contract Modifications, Contractor Claims and Force Acct. negotiations. The
Consuitant shall be responsible for all decisions made by their employees, or any sub-consultant

for the assigned services. Errors which result in increased project costs may result in a back
charge to the consultant. S

o Provide- technical-assistance™to~ the—MDOT Project ~ Engineer Manager (V. Judnic) in~
administering projects. -

o The Consultant Technical Assistant shall perform duties as assigned by the MDOT PEM, which

may include processing shop drawing reviews and investigating design questions which may

arise during construction.

Check and compute final pay quantities for project plans.

Provide project close-out and delivery engineer certification.

Review and finalize as-built plans.

Review and recommend approval for concrete mixes.

Check inspector daily reports (IDR's).

Generate concrete quality assurance documentation.

Review concrete projects and documentation for quality initiative.

Review bituminous projects and documentation for quality initiative.

Review pavement surface ride quality calculations.

Review construction plans prior to project letting.

Verify project final field measurements.

Assist with negofiations with contractors to mitigate or eliminate claims.

Provide assistance with construction plan interpretation.

Review survey quality assurance plans.

OO0 0 0 0 0000 00 00 o0
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Understanding of Service
Construction Engineering (cont’d)

o Research and advise MDOT PEM, Delivery Engineer(s), Assistant Delivery Engineer and MDOT
Construction Technician 11 and 12 on various issues.

o Review, research and solve complex field problems.

o Coordinate and provide inspection for projects Wayne County Department of Public Services
(WCDPS) traffic signal unit, Detroit Public Lighting Department (PLD) and the Detroit Water and
Sewer Department (DWSD).

o Provide coordination, contact, public relations and cooperation (as requested by the, MDOT, ;.-
PEM) with affected local;: state and/or federal agencies, including-the Department Personnel,y....
FHWA, other Consultants“and Contractors, the public, utiiities and local emergency services
which may be affected by construction Projects. _

o The technical assistant may be requested to arrange and conduct progress and periodic
meetings, in addition to preparing and distributing meeting minutes. Technical assistant shall be
requested to periodically arrange, attend, conduct and prepare meeting notes as requested by
the PEM. I A D

Engineering/Technical Assistance Provided by Professional/Project Engineer:

This team offers extensive technical expertise in all areas of MDOT construction engineering. The depth of

technical expertise gives the Detroit TSC an opportunity to draw on that experience on an as-needed basis.

The engineers that are offered are intimately familiar with how the Detroit TSC operates, having worked on

large construction projects with them for-over four years. Some of the areas where engineering and/or

technical assistance can be provided include the following; ,

»  For assisting with project administration, the project engineers will be available to provide assistance by . :
being available to chair contractor meetings, write meeting minutes, proactively prevent construction
issues, resolve construction issues, resolve conflicting information, petform construction schedule
reviews, monitor progress, prepare work orders, assist with contract modifications, exercise cost
containment, and negotiate with contractors. '

For processing_and performing construction_submittal. reviews, _the_consultant professional/project

~ engineerwill understand what submittals are required, make sure that the contractor is providing those
submittals, understand who is responsible for reviewing the submittals, distributing the submittals to the
reviewers, receiving comments, tracking the submittals, and finally distributing final approved submittals.
A website is recommended that will serve to distribute and tracks the submittals.

» For investigating design questions, the consultant professional/project engineer will first review the
original contract documents, understand the design intent that may require communication with the
designer, formulate solution options, coordinate solutions with the contractor, and offer recommendations
to the PEM. The consultant will also be available fo coordinate necessary design changes, as requested.

+ Perform constructability reviews of Detroit TSC projects, and subsequently provide comments and
prepare reports of these reviews. The team has extensive experience performing constructability
reviews, including numerous large projects designed by URS and their constructability review contract
for the University Region. In addition, BBF Engineering Services has provided staff to the Detroit TSC
for a range of technical assistance services for over seven years.

»  Conduct Reviews of the consultant, MDOT or Local Government project files for compliance with the
oversight policies of the FHWA and good record keeping standards.

Collect copies of tests or reports and conduct random quality reviews of documents generated by the
consultant team. BBF Engineering Services shall coordinate and obtain the approval of the PEM on the
type AND amount of tests or reports to be collected and reviewed.

»  Assist the MDOT PEM in the coordination of necessary project design changes.
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Technical Assistance Provided by Lead Construction Technicians (10+ Years):

This team also offers several Lead Construction Technicians with a minimum of 10 years of MDOT

construction experience to provide technical assistance on projects overseen by the Detroit TSC. Some of

the areas where technical assistance can be provided by Senior Technicians include the following:

+  Review Force Account Submittals

Review Final Field Measured Quantities

« Assistin the drafting of Contract Modifications and the review of project extras and overruns

«  Conduct Reviews of the consultant, MDOT or Local Government project files for compliance with the
- oversight policies of the FHWA and good record keeping standards

- Attend Meetings as requested by the MDOT PEM or his designee

+ Review project drawings’,__and perform constructability reviews_ for projects as.s‘ign‘eg by.the PEM and ...

report review results .- -+ -
Assist with project close out
Work closely with MDOT technicians to review and finalize quantities and contract modifications

Provide on-site inspection expertise and supervision of co-op inspectors

Collect copies of tests or reports and conduct random quality reviews of documents generated by the

consultant team. BBF Engineering Services shall coordinate and obtain the approval of the PEM on the
type and amount of tests or reports to be collected and reviewed, o

Construction Staking/Surveying:

This Team provides a highly experience company certified in Construction Staking who is capable to meet
the surveying needs of MDOT. Surveying Solutions, Incorporated (SSI) will provide construction staking
services on this project in accordance with the Contractor Staking item, which will be included in the
- Construction Confract. The Consultant (BBF Team/SSI) will NOT be required to perform the Contractor
Staking as defined in the Special Provision or 2003 Standard Specification for Construction. It is our
understanding that we will perform all staking in accordance with MDOT Standards to be performed by the
Engineer as indicated in the 2003 Standard Specifications for Construction. SSI understands they will be
responsible for reviewing information to ensure accuracy and compliance with the contract documents, If
problems are found, SSI will work with the Project Team to resolve any plan errors, discrepancies or
omissions identified by the Contractor and/or Vendor and nofify the MDOT Project Manager and Prime
Vendor Consultant, SSI will provide staking services_throughout the project including performing verification
-of project control prior to construction, verification staking services during construction, and office work to
transmit information in an effective format to benefit and assist the Project Team. In addition to the minimum
verification staking indicated in the specifications and the MDOT Construction Manual, the Consultant shall
verify the Contractor's bench loops and verify the “as constructed” plan information provided by the
Contractor and incorporate it into the final As-Constructed plans as deemed necessary by the MDOT PEM.

During construction, our team leader will schedule crews to meet the needs of this contract. Field crews will
perform all requested verification staking tasks in a timely manner and will be familiar with the standard
construction practices of the Department, other project-specific documents, and any other references,
guidelines, procedures or manuals needed to carry out the work described herein. We will verify all plan
grades, sewer invert and outlet grades, top of casting grades, and alignment data to be sure that the
information makes sense with existing conditions. We will discuss any potential conflicts with the MDOT PEM
and Vendor Project Manager as soon as possible. Our field crews wil complete staking documentation that
will be legally bound, signed, checked, and dated. As necessary, the field notes can be provided at any time.
At the direction of the MDOT PEM and Team Prime Consultant, SSI staff will roufinely meet with the MDOT
Project Team to ensure all necessary staking tasks are being completed and all potential conflicts are being
worked on or resolved. A constant line of communication between all personnel wil keep the contractor
moving forward without claims of time loss, thus saving MDOT valuable money in the end. Most of SSI's
work consists of Staking for MDOT TSC’s. We understand and adhere to the MDOT 24 hour staking request
policy. We strive to keep field crews circulating in every area, enabling us to mobilize a field crew to a
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Understanding of Service
Construction Engineering (cont'd)

staking request very promptly. Al SS| field crews understand the importance of communication when
making even small changes. If any change is made, no matter how small, we will contact the MDOT PEM
(or his designee) and the team prime consultant, detailing the change.

When verification staking tasks are complete, SSI wil quickly finalize and return project-specific materials in

a neat and orderly manner. We will provide the information in a format that is effective and clear, so field
personnel will easily be able to utilize the information. We will perform as needed preliminary staking tasks
and measures needed to allow the contractor to begin performing construction, These tasks will include (but .

are not limited to) right-of-way staking’ where needed, establishing horizontal’ and, vertical control, Gross: S
sectioning for tie-ins, verifying under clearances, reviewing plans for possible errors, fisld checking invert .
elevations, etc. Our field crews will complete staking documentation that will be legally bound and dated.

When survey projects are complete, we will finalize and return project-specific materials in an efficient and

orderly manner. SSI has the ability to provide services to include (not limited to) verification of the following:

l. CONTROL
A. Horizontal and vertical control at each project site.
B. Re-establish horizontal and vertical control where necessary.
C.  Location of centerline control and right-of-way corners
D. Witness all control and government section comers within project area,
I, BASE TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY
A. Conducted at all bridge approaches (as requested). - :
B. Conducted where ramp work and improvements are being made (as requested).
C. To locate elevations for drainage and installation of all proposed cross tiles (if plans do not
provide invert elevations). ' '
D. Profile areas of roadway where necessary to verify proper paving of all super elevation grades.

E. Locate all right-of-way fence that is being replaced so as to layout for installation at its original
location.

Hl. CONSTRUCTION LAYOUT FOR PROPERTY N
~~  A-RoughGrading—— -
1. Layout according to MDOT Specifications for sub-grading of roadway base.
2. Layout of all bridge approaches and ramps.

B. Final Grading
1. Layout according to MDOT Specifications for final paving.

2. Layout of bridge approaches and ramps.
V. CONSTRUCTION LAYOUT OF BRIDGES

A. Layout of bridge work in accordance with MDOT Specifications.

B. Provide necessary layout as it pertains to each bridge.

C. Obtain cross section profiles at all connections to existing roadways and
bridges to verify plan tie-ins and check plan grades versus field verification at
all bridges for underclearance as deemed necessary by the PEM.

V. MISCELLANEOUS CONSTRUCTION LAYOUT '

A. Layout of all necessary signage (temporary and permanent).

B. Layout of all right-of-way fences that are being replaced,

C. Verify plan grades for sewer invert and outlet grades, top of casting grades and
ditch and other drainage grades.

VI.  AS-BUILTS
Profile updated information for as-built plans.
A. Verify measurements bridge clearance of overpasses.
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Understanding of Service

Construction Engineering / As-Needed Inspection

Our experienced project team is committed to completing the Construction Inspection Services in
accordance with MDOT. Our inspection areas of work will include but not be limited to the following:

o]

(0]

Perform functions as the assigned project inspector consistent with the Department's practices
and in accordance with the MDOT specifications, plans, proposal, Michigan Construction
Manual, Materials Sampling Guide, and any other applicable references.

Monitoring and documenting all work in conformance with the contraotdggungg R
Providing necessary_communication and correspondence with the MDOT. project. engineer
manager, MDOT senior technician(s), and construction contractor.  Provide project
documentation using the MDOT FieldBook Program.

Provide utility inspectors qualified and experienced to inspect facilities for City of Detroit public
agencies including Detroit Public Lighting and Detroit Water and-Sewer Department in addition
to MDOT freeway lighting, MITSC, pumphouse construction and traffic signal upgrading projects.
Perform special inspections within the construction influence areas as directed by the PEM.
Vendor shall furnish materials, equipment, supplies and incideritals needed to conduct the
required field inspections, observations and field testing services.

Complete all measurements and calculations necessary to determine various quantities eligible
for payment under the respective pay items. Inspectors shall be prepared to turn in pay items on
a daily basis to the assigned office technician.

Maintain and keep records of construction work performed by the contractor.

Keep the MDOT Project Manager (V. Judnic) and his designee(s) advised of unanticipated
issues and changes that may result in extras or contract adjustments.

The BBF Team shall have the sufficient number of qualified and experienced technicians to be

_-.-_assigned to-projects to_perform- the-services__in-a_quality=manner_to-avoid—any- d elay-to-the

Construction Contractor. Personnel performing inspection and testing on bituminous, Portland

cement, aggregate, or for density shall have the appropriate certifications and levels for the
inspection and testing that is being performed.

Notify the MDOT Project Engineer Manager, or his designee of site issues to be addressed and
resolved in a timely manner. Notify the MDOT Project Manager or his designee when issues
related to lack of general contractor progress occur. '

In the event that an assigned inspector witnesses a field construction condition that could be
deemed as unsafe, the inspector shall contact the contractors’ field supervisor and the MDOT
Project Engineer Manager or his designee.

Review and confirm acceptability of material certificates that are submitted by the contractor.

Prepare and submit required periodic, intermediate and final reports required under the
engineering services contract scope.

Provide project documentation to the department with respect to contractor claims.

Label, update and appropriately identify required information on MDOT as-built plans in order to
compute final quantities for accurate completion of project final close-out,

Monitor project site conditions and address issues such as cleaning streets, dust control, and
environmental issues caused by the project.
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o Verify placement of erosion control measures and maintenance during the project duration,
o Ensure traffic control is properly placed and maintained during the project duration.

o Perform inspection of the construction site to assure that proper soil erosion and sedimentation
controls are in place. An MDEQ certified NPDES Stormwater Operator shall be assigned to
inspect and document the project per the NPDES requirements (Personnel performing

“inspection on areas where soil and erosion control are needed, must have completed the Soil
Erosion Control Training). Any violation of the NPDES permit by the Construction Contractor
must be immediately reported to the Project Engineer Manager or his designee.

o Complete a final inspection of all work included in the Project, or such portions eligible for
acceptance, after notification by the Construction Contractor that the work is completed or after

the Consultant's records show the work is completed. The final inspection shall include notifying

the MDOT PEM and Construction Contractor in writing (as requested) of particular defects to be
remedied if work is not acceptable to the Consultant and MDOT. Provide inspection of projects
for timely completion of final cleanup, punch list items and traffic control.

o Ascertain that every part of the Project has been performed in accordance with the plans and
specifications, or such modifications that have been approved, and make recommendation for

Project acceptance. Ensure that the Project Engineer Manager and other Department personnel, ..

as directed by current Department policy, participate in the final acceptance process.

For all Construction Engineering Services, the Consultant's principal contact with the Department shall be
through the designated Project Engineer Manager, Mr. Victor Judnic. The Consultant team shall comply with

all applicable Federal and State laws, rules, and regulations. The Consultant shall perform field operations in
accordance with MIOSHA regulations and accepted safety practices.

Understanding of Service

Construction Engineering / Quality Control Testing and Reporting

and tests of and concrete aggregates, testing of required materials according to Material
Sampling Guide to be incorporated in the work, and reject Construction Contractor's work and
materials not meeting the Specifications, Plans, Proposal, the Michigan Construction Manual,
the Materials Sampling Guide, Materials Quality Assurance Manual, and any and all other
applicable references, guidelines, andlor procedures manuals. Determine the acceptability of
materials found to be in non-compliant work and trends toward borderline compliance.

o Material Certification: Make certain that acceptable test reports and/or material certifications
from the supplier have been received, prior to the incorporation of materials in the work, for
materials tested off the Project site.

o Material Reports: Ensure submittal of material test reports, including but not limited, the
Inspector's Report of Concrete Placed 1174A, Aggregate Inspection Reports 1900 & 1901,

Bituminous QA Reports, Concrete QA Reports, and the “Moisture and Density Determination, -

Nuclear Method", Form 5828, etc. to the distribution list within one day of testing. The Team
members understand that the efficiency of the vendor consultant in getting copies of test reports
to the Lansing, Density Technology Unit, 8885 Ricks Road, Lansing, Ml 48909 will be measured
by that unit and reflected on the Consultant’s evaluation.

o Testing Personnel: For aggregate, concrete, density, and bituminous testing, the Vendor wil

utilize only personnel certified according to current Departmental requirements. Personnel wil
be certified on all projects (not just NHS projects).
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Understanding of Service

Construction Engineering / Measurement, Computation, Documentation and Recordkeeping

Measurement, Computation and Documentation of Quantities:
o Documentation: Measure and compute quantities, provide appropriate documentation of all
materials and items of work completed, and maintain an item record account using FieldManager
software. Use the most current available version of FieldManager as the primary system for
automation of all required office work. A
o Insufficient: Tested Materials: Track insufficient tested materials and nofify,
Contractor on a bi-weekly basis, e -

RS i

. Construction

o Maintain As-Constructed Plans for the MDOT Projects showing verified fi
locations and any subsequent quantity changes. Verify as-constructed plan information that is
required to be provided by the contractor. Provide assistance with development of as-constructed
plans for other projects within Metro Region, as directed by the MDOT Project Engineer Manager.

Reporting and Record Keeping:
o Consultant Generated Reports: Prepare periodic, intermediate, and final reports and records as
may be required by the Department and as applicable to each construction project.

a) When each vendor invoice is submitted to the PEM, the following table(s) will be
submitted:  construction contract time elapsed to-date (% versus total construction
contract time-elapsed), contractor revenue eamed to-date (% versus total contract
value), and consultant billings to-date (% versus total consultant contract value).

o Contractor Generated Reports: Review, process, and/or abprove Construction '.Clontractor

submittal of records and reports required by the Department as applicable to the Project which may
include, but not limited to:

a) Working Drawings
b) Weekly Employment Reports, Certified Payrolls (Form 1199)

ges, final utilty

———¢)—Contractor's-claims-for-additional-compensation-and-extension(s)-of time:
d) Other reports and records as required for the individual project by the Project Engineer

Manager.
o Project Files: Provide all necessary files to the Department personnel for the Department to
maintain the project files in accordance with the MDOT File Manual and Departmental procedures.
Copy select correspondence and documentation to the Project Engineer Manager which requires

immediate attention or action. It is understood that project files will be maintained in the Detroit TSC
by Department office personnel,

Closing/Finaling All Project Documentation:

o Final Measure and Summarize: Final field measure applicable items of work. Prepare final
summaries for applicable items of work. : _

o Project Review/Certification: Participate in and resolve items determined to be insufficient during
the Department's review(s) of project records. prior to submittal of the Final Estimate.

o Final Documents: Assist the Department in the preparation and submittal of the Final Estimate,

Final Quantity Sheets, Final Marked As-Constructed Plans, and the Design/Construction Package
Evaluation (Form 285-2).
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Structure of the Project Team- Vendor Roles

Key Stalf Resumes are shown in Exhibit A
Supplemental Resumes Represented on Organization Chart by Asterisk*

Vendor Roles:
BBF Engineering Setvices, P.C. (BBF) - Estimated Contract Percentage — 70%
Key Roles: Construction Engineering and Inspection, Technical Assistance, Project Administration

URS Corporation Great Lakes, Incorporated (URS) - Estimated Contract Percentage — 10%
Key Roles: Engineering/ Technical Assistance, Construction Engineering and Inspection

Surveying Solutions, :l‘r.ic'drp.'orated (SSI) - Estimated Contract Pérbenfage - 10"’/0’ '
Key Roles: Construction Staking

SOMAT Engineering, Incorporated (SOMAT) - Estimated Contract Percentage —10%
Key Roles: Construction Testing, Materials and Density Testing

Key personnel will communicate in accordance with the format shown within the organization chart, The
PEM will be the principal contact person as specified in the Request for Proposals. The Consultant
Technical Assistant(s) shall assist the PEM in administering all aspect of projects, as requested by the
MDOT Project Engineer Manager. The Senior Road and Bridge Inspectors shall assist the PEM and/or his
designee in project inspection/engineering, completing project documentation, and project close-out.

Structure of the Project Team- Qualifications of the Team

Key Personnel and Roles:

Vendor Coordinator/Vendor Project Manager (Supplemental Staff)- Bellandra B. Foster, Ph.D., P.E,
(BBF): Responsibility for coordinating project staffing requests will be the responsibility of the Vendor
Coordinator to communicate with the MDOT Project Engineer Manager (Victor Judnic, PE) to ensure staffing

"—iﬂ@édS-aF&me’I’.’—PFGViding%a{ﬂon-b“|able)'—VeH'der—GoG)rdiﬁator—WillAallew-.the{%@hs'u;]t'éntPﬁ)jecfEngiheer-'gndhw~-

Senior Inspectors fo focus on the responsibilities directly related to the construction engineering duties of the
assigned projects. Bellandra Foster has knowledge of the MDOT organization due fo Her past employment:
in the Construction, Utilities/Permits and Designi divisions. Her MDOT expérience will aid in the ability of the
Team to supply as-needed staff for any project need which arises within the jurisdiction of the Detroit TSC,
Technical Assistant and Lead Construction Inspector- Patrick Lawton (BBF): Patrick Lawton has
worked as an MDOT technician for 37 years, 7 of which have been as a staff member of BRF Engineering
Services. He has extensive: experience in all aspects of road and bridge inspection, construction
engineering, technical assistance, project administration, project finaling, supervision of inspectors and
overall monitoring of construction activities. Patrick has worked as a lead inspectot, technical assistant and
project administrator for MDOT projects within the City of Detroit, Wayne County and Southeastem Michigan.
Mr. Lawton has a B.S. degree in mathematics and numerous certifications and relevant training. courses
including SESC, MCAJACI Concrete Cerfification, Aggregate Testing, Prevailing Wage, Density, HAZMAT
and Pedestrian Facilities Accessibility.

Road Construction Inspector / Technical Assistant (Sunplamental) - Ray Stewart (BEFY: Ray Stowart
will be available to serve as a Lead Road Construction Inspector or Technical Assistant.  With extensive
experience in inspection of MDOT road and bridge projects, Mr. Stewart has- a wide range of field and office
experience including paving, milling, resurfacing, maintaining traffic, MITSC (Intelfigent Transportation
Systems) Installation and sewer installation projects. He has also been responsible for completing project
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administration, technical assistance, project close-outs and project file review for engineering certifications.
Mr. Stewart was an MDOT employee for 30 years and a member of the BBF Engineering Services team for 7
years. Mr. (Ray) Stewart has numerous certifications and relevant training courses including SESC,
MCAJACI Concrete Certification, FieldManager, Materials Acceptance and Office Technician.

Road Construction Inspector and/or Technical Assistant- Willis Stewart (BBF): Willis Stewart has
extensive experience with MDOT projects and will serve as a Technical Assistant and/or Senior Road
Inspector for the requested services. With extensive experience in inspection of MDOT road and
maintenance projects, Mr. Stewart has a wide range of field and permit review experience including DWSD,
Detroit Public Lighting, Detroit Public Works and Wayne County Public Services. He has also been
responsible for providing permit inspection and permit review services as an employee of MDOT. for 33 years
and a member of the BBF.Engineering Services team for 6.years Mr. Stewart is. experienced in the
inspection procedures for a wide range of projects including paving, milling, resurfacing, maintaining traffic,
sewer installation, and capital preventive maintenance. Mr. (Willis) Stewart has numerous certifications and

relevant training courses including MCA/ACI Concrete Certification, Density, Bituminous QA/QC, Aggregate
and HAZMAT.

Road Construction Inspector- Charles Latimer (BBF): Mr. Charles Latimer is a road.and utiliy
construction inspector due to- his extensive experience in inspection of all roadway: types;« electrical
installation, Detroit Public Lighting, Detroit Water and Sewer (DWSD), MITSC, freeway lighting and traffic
signal upgrading infrastructure.  He has a total of 21 years of experience, 9 of which have been spent
working on projects administered within the MDOT Detroit TSC. Mr. Latimer has numerous certifications and
relevant training courses including Density, MCA/ACI Concrete Certification and FieldManager.

Road Construction Inspector- Chad Godbout (BBF): Mr. Godbout is a construction inspector with
extensive experience providing inspection for a range of MDOT construction projects including road and
pumphouse construction inspection. Mr. Godbout has 8 years of inspection experience working on MDOT
projects within the Detroit and Wayne County area. Mr. Godbout has eamed an A.S. degree in Construction
Technology and is certified in MCAJACI Concrete testing and inspection and has extensive training in

inspection of ADA facilities. He is a versatile inspector who is willing and capable of inspecting multiple
ongoing projects. -

Road Construction Inspector- Jason Jackson (BBF): Jason Jackson is a construction inspector with
experience in inspection and testing of MDOT road construction projects. He has numerous construction
inspection certifications, in addition to 9 years of inspection experience working on MDOT and related
projects. Mr. Jackson will earn an A.S. degree in Construction Technology in 2009 and is certified in
MCA/ACI Concrete Certification (Levels | and 1), inspection of ADA facilifies, Density, Aggregate, Bituminous

Lab, Office Technician, Designing Pedestrian Facilities, MDOT Bituminous Paving Operations, and OSHA 30
Hour Certified.

Road Construction Inspector- Asia Denson (BBF): Asia Denson has served as a road construction
inspector with 3 years of MDOT inspection experience, including 1.5 years with the staff of BBF Engineering
Services. Ms. Denson will provide her expertise as a road construction inspector for the as-needed MDOT
services. Ms. Denson has earned a Bachelor of Scierice in Engineering Technology and will earn a Masters
Degree in Construction Engineering Management in 2009. Ms. Denson has numerous certifications and
relevant training courses including Density and MCA/ACI Concrete Certification.

Bridge Construction Inspector- Allen Hinchcliff (BBF): Allen Hinchcliff has served as a lead road and
bridge construction inspector with 37 years of MDOT experience and 9 years with the staff of BBF

Engineering Services. Mr. Hincheliff will provide his expertise as a bridge inspector for the as-needed MDOT
Services.
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Bridge Construction Inspector- LaKeisha Hamilton (BBF): LaKeisha Hamilton has served as a road and
bridge construction inspector with 7 years of MDOT and Local Government inspection experience, including
3 years with the staff of BBF Engineering Services. Ms. Hamilton will provide her expertise as a bridge
construction inspector for the as-needed MDOT services. Ms. Hamilton has eamed a Bachelor of Science
Degree in Engineering Management. She has numerous certifications and training courses including

MCA/ACI Concrete Certification, SESC, Michigan Bridge Construction, and Office Management Procedures
for Local Transportation Projects. , _

Bridge Construction Inspector- Michael Wilks (BBF): Michael Wilks has served as a infrastructure
construction and structural inspector for 13 years. Mr. Wilks' experience includes pumphouse inspection,
structural steel, concrete, building facilities, bridges and overhead cranes. He will provide his expertise as a

bridge construction inspector for the as-needed MDOT services. Mr. Wiks has eamed cerificates in i

Confined Space Entry and Fall Protection/Lifeline Inspection.

Professional/Project Engineer/Technical Assistant - Mike Guter, P.E. (URS) is available to assist in the
areas of project/professional engineering and technical assistance. Mr. Guter has 17 years of professional
experience including an extensive background in both design and construction. Mr. Guter is currently working

on the $168 million Gateway #4 reconstruction of 1-96 and 1-75 at the. Ambassador Bridge, providing |

construction administration assistance to the Detroit TSC. He performed similar tasks for both the $80 million
-96 from M-39 to Roosevelt corridor upgrade and the $55 million M-10 Lodge from Jefferson to Greenfield
corridor upgrade. Mr. Guter also was the Lead Construction Engineer for the $140 million M-6/US-131
interchange construction project in Kent County, which included 28 bridges , 18 retaining walls, and 2.5 miles

of soundwall. He has been involved in many technical challenges on previous projects and has successfully
_responded to and resolved these challenges. o -

Professional/Project Engineer/Technical Assistant - Jason Fisher, P.E. (URS) is available to provide
technical and professional engineering assistance. Mr. Fisher has extensive experience performing project
engineering on MDOT and local agency projects throughout the Detroit Metro area. Mr. Fisher also has
provided construction administration assistance on the Gateway #4 project, which includes Michigan's first
cable stay bridge along with many other complex steel structures, and the M-10 Lodge corridor upgrade,
including the rehabilitation of 39 bridges. He has recently served as project engineer on an upgrade and

———————Widening-along-US-127-for-the-Jackson-TSE; for-the-rehabilitatiori-of-4 miles of M=17-inYpsilanti, and for the

installation of a security system at the Blue Water Bridge. Mr. Fisher has valuable experience with projects
that included bridge rehabilitation and reconstruction, major facility renovations, intersection widening

projects, cold milling, concrete and HMA paving, utility replacement, road reconstruction, and transmission
hatural gas main installation.

Bridge Inspector - Peter Bugar, EIT (URS) is available to serve as a road and/or bridge inspector. Mr.
Bugar is currently working on the $168 million Gateway #4 reconstruction of 1-96 and I-75 at the Ambassador
Bridge, specifically focusing on the $7 million P09 Bagley pedestrian bridge and the Gateway #5 plazas. He
also worked on the $55 million M-10 corridor upgrade project for the Detroit TSC. His role on M-10 Lodge
included extensive concrete pavement repairs. He also worked on the 1-94 soundwall project in Ypsilanti and
bridge upgrades along the Ohio Turnpike. Mr. Bugar's expertise is in construction inspection for roadway,
bridge, soundwall, and other surface transportation projects. Mr. Bugar is trained in concrete inspection,

HMA inspection, aggregate inspection, concrete testing and density testing. He holds certifications for the
latter three.
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Sfructure of the Project Team- Qualifications of the Team(cont'd)

Project Surveyor - Anthony D. Thelen, P.S.

Mr. Thelen has vast experience in MDOT projects. He is responsible for assisting crew chiefs on any
questions that arise and help them through difficult staking tasks. He specializes in construction layout,
survey setup, setting horizontal and vertical control, calculating quantities, and setting alignment for bridge
and road projects. Mr. Thelen also serves as a project manager for all GPS projects for Surveying Solutions
and has managed numerous GPS control surveys. Mr. Thelen has a Master's Degree in Surveying
Engineering and has spent many project hours providing construction layout for MDOT projects. This
experience provides him with the ability to handle very complex and simple layout procedures, while being
able to deal with and translate plan and design issues to the. Protect Engineer. On_many protects he. is
utilized as a member of tha QAIQC team, responsible in maktng sure that all field parsonnel are adhcrmg to
the plan specifications.  As the Team Leader, Mr. Thelen will oversee the day to day operations of the field

crews and office personnel. He will be responsible for implementing the QA/QC plan, assuring the field
crews are using the proper processes.

Project Surveyor (QA/QC) - Jeffrey D. Bartlett, P.S.

Mr. Bartlett has completed several large MDOT undertakings. He is responstble for special MDOT contracts
and has extensive experience working on projects with state and federal funding. He specializes | in assisting
team leaders with developlng and maintaining their quality control plans, developing project scopes, writing
project estimates and reviewing completed field work and calculations.

Project Surveyor (Supplemental As Needed) - Randall Heiss, LSIT

Mr. Heiss has four years of surveying experience and has eamed a Bachelor of Science in Surveying
Engineering. He has provided survey expertise on numerous MDOT projects.

Project Surveyor (Supplemental As Needed) - David LaCross, LSIT

Mr. Lacross has eight years of surveying experience and has earned a Bachelor of Science in Surveying
Engineering. He has provided survey expertise on numerous MDOT projects.

Materials and Density Technician- Don Lowry (SOMAT): Mr. Lowry has over 15 years of construction
materials testing and inspection experience. He is involved in various construction projects in which his

-_responsibilities include field and laboratory testing: — Mr. Lowry has also been involved with- providing_—-

earthwork, bituminous pavement and concrete quality control testing and inspection. Mr. Lowry maintains
numerous relevant certifications.

Materials and Density Technician- Don Cavins (SOMAT): Mr. Cavins has 9 years of inspection and
testing experience. He has extensive construction experience working on MDOT projects providing
inspection and materials testing for watermains, sewers, pump stations, roadways, bridge rehabilitation,
concrete pavement and HMA paving. Mr. Cavins maintains numerous testing and inspection certifications.

Materials and Density Technician (Supplemental) - Matthew Allor (SOMAT): Mr. Allor has 1 year of

experience as a testing technician. He will provide field and laboratory testing. Mr. Allor maintains numerous
relevant testing certifications.

Materials and Density QA/QC (Supplemental As Needed) - Steve Drummond, P.E. (SOMAT): Mr.
Drummond has 10 years of field engineering, inspection and materials testing experience. He will be
available to provide management of the QA/QC for materials testing for MDOT construction projects.

Materials and Density QA/QC (Supplemental As Needed) - Richard Anderson, P.E. (SOMAT): Mr
Anderson has 36 years of construction engineering, field engineering, inspection and materials testing
experience. He will be available to provide management of the QA/QC for materials testing for MDOT
construction projects.
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Organization Chart
Reflects Key Personnel Requested by MDOT Project Engineer Manager

Supplemental Staff Are Noted by an Asterisk*

LEGEND

BBF Engineering Services (BBF), URS Corporation Great Lakes (URS),
SOMAT Engineering (SOMAT), Surveying Solutions (SSI)

MDOT Project Engineer
Manager

Victor Judnic, P.E. - MDOT Senior Field

\ - Inspector

Construction Technician 12

- MDOT Assistant Delivery
Engineer

Steve Griffith

Project Engineer/
Engineering Assistants
(Part-Time)

Mike Guter, P.E. (URS)

Jason Fisher, P.E. (URS)*
Bellandra Foster, Ph.D., P.E. (BBF)*

Bridge Construction
{— . Inspectors

Road Construction
Inspectors

Technical Assistants

Allen Hinchcliff (BBF) Patrick Lawton (BBF)

LaKeisha Hamilton (BBF)
Michael Wilks (BBF)
Peter Bugar, EIT (URS)

Chad Godbout (BBF)
Charles Latimer (BBF)
Asia Denson (BBF)
Jason Jackson (BBF)
Ray Stewart (BBF)*
Willis Stewart (BBF)*
Don Lowry (SOMAT)*
Don Cavins (SOMAT)*

Ray Stewart (BBF)*
Willis Stewart (BBF)*

Surveyors Materials and Density
(Part-Time)

Technicians (Part-Time)

Anthony Thelen, P.S. (SSI) Don Lowry (SOMAT)
Jeff Bartlett, P.S. (SSI)

Don Cavins (SOMAT)
Randall Heiss, LSIT (SSH* Matthew Allor (SOMAT)*
David LaCross, LSIT (SSI)*

Materials and Density QA/QC
Steve Drummond, P.E. (SOMAT)*
Richard Anderson, P.E. (SOMAT)*
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JASON VOIGT December 7,; 2012

ONITED STATES DISTRICT COURT )
EASTERN DISTRICT OF MICHIGAN T
SOUTHERN DIVISION

* ok %

BBF ENGINEERING SERVICES, P.C.,
a Michigan corporation, and
BELLANDRA FOSTER, an individual,

Plaintiffs,
Case No, .11~Cv-14853
V8., JHon. Nancy G. Edmunds
Mag. Laurie J, Michelson

STATE OF MICHIGAN, a Michigan Public
Corporation, MICHIGAN DEFARTMENT OF
TRANSPORTATION, a Department of the
State of Michigan, VICTOR JUDNIC and
‘MARK STUECHER,

Defendants.
/

THE DEPOSITION OF JASON VOIGT

smesErDYY

The Deposition of JASON VOIGT, taken

before Judith Halprin, CSMR-3202, Certified Court Reporter and
Notary Public for the County of Oakland, Acting in the County of
Wayne, at 535 Griswold Street, Suite 1000, City of Detroit,

State of Michigan, on Friday, December 7, 2012, comméncing at or

PP T O T e T e e

about the hour of 10:10 o'clock, a.m.

APPEARANCES: AVERY K, WILLIAMS, ESQUIRE
Williams Acosta, PLLC
535 Griswold Street, Suite 1000
Detroit, Michigan 48226 it
Appearing on behalf of the Plaintiffs, '

TTeNTTI AT

% % * CONTINUED ON FOLLOWING PAGE * * *

JUDLTH HALPRIN COURT REPORTING & VIDEQ 4 + + FELEPHONE: 248.851.3332 + ¢ ¢ FAX: 248.851,3333 EMAIL:

HalprinCourt@aol.com
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APPEARANCES, CONT.: MICHAEL J, DITTENBER, ESQUIRE 1 Detroit, Michigan
%ssistan; Attomey General 2 Friday, December 7, 2012
42?1&?2& Ottawa Street, 4th Floor 3 Atabout 10:10 o'clock, a.m.
Lansing, Michigan 48913 4 wEE
Appearing on behalf of the Defendants, 5 JASON VOIGT,
) 6 having been first duly sworn by the Notary Public to
ALSQATTENDING:  VICTOR JUDNIC 7 tell the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the
REPORTED BY: JUDITH HALPRIN, CSMR-3202 8 truth, testified upon his oath as follows:
Judith Halprin Court Reporting & Video 9 MR, WILLIAMS: The record should H
Telephone: 248.851.3332 10 reflect that this is the date, time and place set for
11 the Deposition of Mr. Jason Voigt, who was originally
12 subpoenaed for a Deposition in Nevada, who has
13 graciously agreed to make himself available in Detroit
14 for this Deposition today for the convenience of the
15 parties. '
16 Me. Voigt, my name is Avery
17 Williams. I'm an attorney representing Bellandra Foster |2
18 in some litigation, and BBF Engineering in some
19 litigation that has been filed against Victor Judnic |
20 and Mark Steucher arising out of BBF Engineering's i
21 dealings with MDOT and the State of Michigan over the §
22 course of a number of yeats, i
23 I£ you would just listen to these
24 instructions, it may expedite this, and get this thing =~ |z
25 done and over with quickly. )
Page 3 page 5|
1 . INDEX 1 T'm going to be asking you a series §
2 'WIINESS PAGE 2 of questions today, about situations in which you were ;
3 JASON VOIGT 3 involved, or where your name has come up. Ifat anytime {
4 Cross-Examination by Mr, Williams 5 4 you don't understand the question, please indicate you |
5 Redirect Examination by Mr. Dittenber 38 5 don't understand the question and I'll attempt to i
. 6 Rectoss-Examination by Mr, Williams 47 6 restate it or rephrase it so that you give a fair answer
7 7 to a fair question. If you give me an answerto a i
.8 8 question, I'm going to assume that you understood the
9 9 question, and the answer you've given is the answer
10 {10 you've intended. Is that fair?
11 ¥ ok Kk 11 THE WITNESS: Yes.
12 EXHIBITS PAGE # MARKED {12 MR. WILLIAMS: I don't know if
13 Deposition Exhibit Number 1 22 13 you've had your Deposition taken before, but if you have
14 (Title VI Complaint w/Attachments) 14 notthere is a court reporter here who has to keep a
15 Deposition Exhibit Number 2 24 15  record, so you have to give verbal answers, yes, no, or
16 (Title VI Complaint w/Attachments) 16 actually make a statement. She can't take down nods of
17 Deposition Exhibit Number 3 27 17 thehead or ub-uh or um-hmm, so 1l try and be --
18 (Title VI Complaint w/Attachments) 18 THE WITNESS: Okay.
19 - 19 MR WILLIAMS: Mindful of that, and
20 20 then this Deposition is to be used for all purposes
21 21 allowed by the Federal Rules of Evidence, as well as the
22 22 Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. i
23 23 CROSS-EXAMINATION §
24 124 BY MR. WILLIAMS: i
25 3
v - SRy TR R o
2 (Pages 2 to 5)
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Page 6 Page 8
1 A Jason Richard Voigt, 1 title?
2 Q And you presently live in Henderson, Nevada? 2 A Tthiok it was delivery engineer. It had changed a
3 A Correct, 3 couple of times, Iwas a resident engineer at one time.
4 Q And what is your date of birth? 4 Q Whatare your responsibilities at the Nevada Department
5 A 1975. 5 of Trangportation?
6 Q can you just briefly describe your educational 6 A Imanage construction, active construction projects on
7 background? 7 the roadways; oversee consultants that are assigned --
8 A Igraduated high school in 1998. 1 attended the 8 that are -- you know, that are hired to help out, you
9 University of Michigan in Ann Atbor. 9 know, the staffing needs and such,
10 Q In 1998 from high school? 10 Q And are those engineering consultants, or construction
11 A Igraduated from -- excuse me. I graduated from high |11 consultants?
12 school in 1993, 12 A Oh,no, engineering.
13 Q Okay. 13 Q Sothese consultants are responsible for design and
14 A lattended the University of Michigan, and I graduated | 14 basically oversight of construction activity?
15 with a Bachelor's of Science and Engineering in May of | 15 A I'm sorry, could you repeat that?
16 -- or May or April of 1998 in Civil Environmental 16 Q These consultants are responsible for design of the
17 Engineering. Iam a Licensed Professional Engineer in | 17 project arid oversight of the actual construction :
18 the State of Nevada and Michigan. 18 projects? i
19 Q Do youhave any other certifications beyond your 19 A I'monly in--in-- when we're doing construction, i
20 Professional Engineer License? 20 they are assigned. I don't oversee during construction §
21 A Thave a Driver’s License. 21 -- or design, or I haven't been. H
22 Q Any professional certifications? 22 Did you have any employees -- were you employed atall 3
23 A Not -1 believe all of them have -- or have lapsed, all |23 before you joined MDOT? |
- 24~ ---the professional ones:-I don't have any other-—— -~ - | 24 A-—Twas employed by a consulting firm in -- [ believe it §
25 professional certifications other than my Professional |25 was West Bloomfield or Bloomfield Township.
Page 7 Page 9f
1 Engineering License, 1 Q Whatwas the name of that firm? ‘
2 Q Other than your Bachelor's Degree, do you have any other 2 A Hubbell, Roth and Clark, 5
3 degrees of any type, or have you taken any additional 3 Q How long were you with Hubbell, Roth and Clark?
4 classes toward any other degree? 4 A Tdon't remember the date, but it would have been i
5 A No 5 approximately the fall of 1998 through May of 1999, i
6 Q Andyouare currently employed by the Nevada Department | 6 roughly. I don't remember the exact dates. 1
7 of Transportation? 7 Q Andyou left Hubbell, Roth and Clark to join MDOT? |}
8 A Cormect, 8 A Correct. i
9 Q Andhow long have you been employed by the Nevada 9 Q Hubbell, Roth and Clark was your first job after you ‘
10 Department of Transportation? 10 graduated from college? %
11 A Since late September of 2008. Late September, I don't 11 A My first professional job, ves. H
12 remember the exact date, of 2008, 12 Q Whydid you leave MDOT? i
13 Q And you have been employed by them continuously since 13 A Abetter offer for employment. %
14 that date? 14 Q Youhave not been convicted of any crimes involving  |i
15 A Correct. 15 theft, dishonesty or moral turpitude? :
16 Q And pnor to that, you were employed by the Michigan 16 A No. |
17  Department of Transportation? 17 Q And you have not had any felony convictions in the past i
18 A Yes, 18 ten years? i
19 Q Whatis your current title at the Nevada Department of 19 A No. 1
20 Transportation? 20 Q Have you ever been sued by anyone?
21 A Resident engineer. 21 A YNo. i
22 Q And has that title changed at all since September of 22 Q Have you ever sued anyone?
23 2008? 23 A Civilly, yes. li
24 A No. 24 Q Who did you sue?
2 5 Q And when you lefc the employ of MDOT what Was your | last 25 A A nelghbor

3 (Pages 6 to 9)
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Page 10 Page 12
1 Q Inyour personal name? 1 show up and T just gave up,
2 A TI'msorry? 2 Q Wasthat in Michigan or --
3 Q Inyour personal name? 3 A Thatwas in Michigan.
4 A Correct, yes. Yes. 4 Q Ina dispute about the condition of the boat, or --
5 Q Andwho was that neighbor? 5 A Adeposit that was not returned.
6 A Their last names were Brannon, 6 Q And what court was that in in Michigan?
7 Q Brannon? 7 A Ithink it was Novi.
8 A Yes. 8 Q District Court?
9 Q Bra-- 9 A Tthink, Twantto say it was on Grand River, somewhere
10 A B-ra-nn-on 10 around there, Tdon't-- that was ten years ago. I
11 Q And what was the nature of that lawsuit? 11 don't remember.
12 A Ttems stolen from my house. 12 Q ‘When you left MDOT, your title was delivery engineer. i
13 Q Areyou married? 13 What titles, other titles did you hold while you were at
14 A Yes. 14 MDOT?
15 Q Wasitin the name of you and your wife, or justyou? { 15 A I'was an assistant resident engineer. I was the bridge
16 A Bothofus. 16 programming engineer for the region. Iwas utilities
17 Q Doyouhave any children? 17 and permits engineer, 1was a local government
18 A No. 18 engineer, and I was an office engineer,
19 Q When was the lawsuit? 19 Q How long were you assistant resident engineer? What
20 A Ifiled it in May of this year, and it was with the 20 years?
21 Arbitrator in August of this year. 21 A 2002 through 2004,
22 Q Was it in Nevada or Michigan? 22 Q Aad the bridge programining engineer?
23 A It was in Nevada. 23 A Twasthatin 2002,
24..Q-.. And it went to Arbitration? 24 Q. Andutilities and permit engineer?. -
25 A Yes. 25 A Thatwent along with the local government engineer, and
) Page 11 Page 13
1 Q Wasthere an award? 1 it was roughly about 2000 through 2002,
2 A Yes 2 Q Soitoverlapped with the local -
3 Q Inyourfavor? 3 A Correct.
4 A Yes. 4 Q Government?
5 Q Didyou testify at all in that case? 5 A  Yeah. Yes.
6 A Justto the arbitrator, It was a similar setting like 6 Q And then the office engineer?
7 what we're in right now, 7 A 1999 through 2000,
8 Q Did the coutt refer it to Arbitvation, and the paities 8 Q And from 2004 through 2008 you were a delivery engineer?
9 agreed to it after you filed the action? 9 A Yes.
10 A InHenderson, Nevada, Arbitration is mandated priorto {10 Q  And when did you -~ did you -~ did there ever come a
11 golng in fiont of a judge. 11 time when you were working for Victor Judnic?
12 Q Have you had your Deposition taken before? 12 A Yes,
13 A No. 13 Q And what years were those?
14 Q And the only litigation you filed was your action 14 A Well, it was definitely through when Lended, and I do
15 against the Brannon's? 15 not remember when he received his promotion, IfI were
16 A Yes. 16 to guess, it would have been in 2006, maybe 2007. I'm
17 Q Have you festified in any trials, other than - 17 sorry, I can't remember when he was promoted.
18 A No. 18 Q It's nota memory test. Just give me --
19 Q Okay. 19 A Yes,
20 A Canwe go back to the litigation question? I'msorry. {20 Q To the best of your knowledge, that's fine,
21 Q Yes, Have you had any other litigation where you've 21 Did you have any persons that
22 been a party, either a Defendant or a Plaintiff? 22 reported to you?
23 A 1 filed a litigation against a boat company, acompany |23 A Yes.
24 selling boats, King Marine, but I just gave up with it. 24 Q 'Who reported to you while you were a delivery engineer?
25 I ﬁled a--1I filed it mth the couﬁ They didn't 25 A
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1 Q Howdo you spell Sekela? 1 friends, a casual call.
2 A S-ekela 2 Q Doyouknow Rita Screws? H
3 Q Okay. 3 A Ido i
4 A Steve Griffith, Paul Cristini, and then -- 4 Q Have you spoken with her at all?
5 Q Paul Christine? 5 A Thaven't seen Rita Screws -- or I spoke with -~ I said
6 A Cristini, 6 hi to her when I was in Michigan last August, or this
7 Q Crlstini? 7 past August I should say.
8 A Yes 8 Q DidLove Charles try and contact you while he was out in
9 Q C+,Ch- 9 Vegas?
10 A Cries-t-i-n-, I believe, and then various interns, or 10 A Yes.
11 rotating engineers; new hires, if you will, 11 Q Didyou speak with him over the phone?
12 Q What about outside office techs, did you have any 12 A Ispoke with him over the phone.
13 outside office techs that reported to you? 13 Q What about Cedric Dargin, do you know Mr. Dargin?
14 A Yes, Various, yes. 14 A Iknow Mr, Dargin, yes. {
15 Q What about Love Charles? 15 Q And when's the last time you spoke with Mr. Dargin? ]
16 A Yes 16 A Maybe two -- maybe two years ago.
17 Q When was the last time you spoke with Mr. Judnic? 17 Q Do youknow Ray Stewart?
18 A Tsaw Mr, Judnic at a Clhristmas -- at an office party 18 A Ido, §
19 approximately one year ago when I was intown, an MDOT | 19 Q  When was the last time you spoke with M. Stewart? i
20 -office patty. 20 A Tcouldn't even tell you, Maybe when I left in 2008,
21-Q What location was the office party? 21 Q What about Pat Lawton?
22 A Tt'was ata -- I forget the name of the place. It was 22 A Yes. Isaw Pat Lawton. Isaw PatLawton in Las Vegas
23 down in Garden City. Iwant to say at like Merrimanand 123 probably two years -- it was probabiy about two years i
24 Ford Road maybe, or Michigan Avenue. Ithink--X_ = }24 __ ago.  _ S
25 forget the name of the place. If you read me every 25 Q Hecalled you whlle he was out there? ;
Page 15 Page 17
1 business on the corer, I could probably tell you which 1 A He--wehave a mutual friend out there. We metup,
2 one it was, buf -- 2 Q Youknow Bellandra Foster?
3 Q When was the last time you saw Mark Steucher? 3 A Yes
4 A Atthat same -- that same location. 4 Q And how did you meet Miss Foster?
5 Q Wasitan MDOT office, or was it like & hall? 5 A Idon't remember the circumstances of our original
6 A Ttwas like a restaurant, hall, bar, 6 meeting.
7 Q When did you first meet Mr. Judnic? 7 Q Doyouremember when you first met her?
8 A Forsure it was prior to my promotion in 2004 to the 8 A Idomnot :
9 Detroit TSC. Exactly what date it was, T couldn't tell 8 Q Wasyours more of a professional working relationship? [
10 you. [ don't remember when Victor was hired in to the 10 A Yes. i
11 department, and I -- I can't give you an exact date. 11 Q  Are you familiar with her company, BBF Engineering
12 Q. Was yours just a professional relationship, or did you 12 Services?
13 consider yourself friends? 13 A Yes. i
14 A Aprofessional relationship. 14 Q Did you have oceasion to work with any representatives i
15 Q What about Mr, Steucher, did you ever work with 15 of BBEY :
16 M, Steucher? 16 A Yes.
17 A WhenTIwasan intern, WhenT was an intern in the 17 Q Doyourecall who from BBF that you worked with?
18" mid-90s, I was working, T was assigned to his office, 18 A Love Charles, Pat Lawton, Chad Godbout, Ray Stewart, !;
19 Q And that was out in the Oakland County TSC? 19 ‘Willis Stewart, Chatles Latimer, I can't remember -
20 A That was before the Oakland County TSC was there, butit | 20 was it Bill Hincheliff, did he work for her? 1can't
21 was in Oakland County, 21 remember if he worked for her or not,
22 Q When was the last time you spoke with Mr. Griffith? 22 Q Clarence Wilson?
23 A Tt was probably a few months ago. 23 A No.
24 Q Justa casual call? 24 Q Bruce Bordner?
25 A Him-- Steve -- Steve agg Tare -1 would consider us 25 A No. I remember the name. 1 don t rem mber Imay
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Page 18 Page 20
1 have met him once. 1 Q Youmentioned Mr, Latimer, What about Reagan Jeeter?
2 Q How about Hubert Batnes? 2 A Iremember she was an intern for MDOT, but I don't
3 A No. Idon' even recognize that name, 3 remember her working for BBE,
4 Q Charles Covington? 4 Q Did you ever participate in any evaluating any
5 A The name sounds familiar, but I don't -- I don't 5 responses fo Requests for Proposals that were submitted
6 remember him. 6 to MDOT by BBF?
7 Q Alan Hincheliff? 7 A Yes,
8 A Was he the older Hinch -- 8 Q Do yourecall which one?
9 Q There was a Hunter and an Alan, 9 A There was one that was -- that was issued maybe a year
10 A Ob,Tknow Hunter. He works for the department now. |10 before 1 left, T want to say in 2007, where she was
11 That was -- was Alan his father, 1 believe. 11 eventually selected through a review -- you know,
12 Q Tdon't know their relationship. 12 through the review process.
13 A Tkuow that there was a Hinchcliff that was not Hunter |13 Q Do you recall what project that was?
14 that I - 14 A TIwanttosay it was an as-needed contract. 'mnota
15 Q Okay. 15 hundred percent sure on that, because I know there was
16 A I'msouy. 16  ‘one for the Lodge that came out around the same time,
17 Q That was working for BBF? 17 50 == ,
18 A That was working for BBF, butI don't think Tever--T |18 Q Okay, and you knew BBF was a woman-owned business
19 knew he was working for them, Let me just leaveitat |19 enterprise?
20 that, but I can't remembet if he - 20 A Yes.
21 Q Whatabout Andy Mitchell? 21 Q Andyou knew it was a Disadvantaged Business Enterprise?
22 A No. 22 A Yes,
23 Q Willis Stewart? 23 Q Andyoualso knew it was a Minority Business Enterprise?
24 A Yes, 124 A Yes, .
25 Q Working for BBF? 25 Q Youmentioned the Lodge. i
Page 19 Page 21
1 A Yes 1 THE WITNESS: Can I.get some coffec?
2 Q Robert Randazzo? 2 MR. WILLIAMS: Yes, please,
3 A No ' 3 (Wheréupon there was an
4 Q Daniel Sperber? 4 interruption in the proceedings.)
5 A That name sounds -- I -- the name sounds fariliar. 5 BY MR. WILLIAMS: 3
6 Q Youjustdon't recall. How about Jason Jackson? 6 Q Youmentioned the Lodge as-needed professional services
7 A Thatname sounds familiar, too. 7 contract for BBF, Do you recall that contract at ali?
8 Q SheilaLincoln? 8 Did you have any role in it?
9 A No. 8 A AgginIremember, and I'm struggling here, I remember
10 Q David Sleight? 10 -~ I remember there was a contract for the Lodge, and T
11 A No. 11 want fo there was a separate contract that was just
12 Q Andyoumentioned Mr. Godbout. Caxsten Applegate? {12 as-needed. I could be wrong about this, but Y -~ T -- i
13 A No. 13 Q Now do you remembor the Lodge contract being cut in half |j
14 Q Aecrielle Hurt? 14 by Mr. Judnic?
15 A No. 15 MR. DITTENRBER; Objection, a
16 Q Arshon Harper? 16 mischaracterization of his testimony.
17 A No. 17 THE WITNESS: I don't.
118 Q LaKeisha Hamilton? 18 BY MR, WILLIAMS: '
19 A That name sounds faniliar. 19 Q Do youremember any segment of the professional services
20 Q Allright, Greg Vigilar? V-isg-i-l-a-, 20 contract for the Lodge being re-bid, and actually been
21 A No. That sounds familiar, I -- 21 awarded to Fishbeck, Thompson, Carr and Huber?
22 Q AsiaBenson? 22 A No,Idon't. Ijustremember there being a Lodge
23 A Again the name sounds familiar, I -- 23 contract going out, and I remember being on the
24 Q Youjust don't recall? 24 selection team for the as-needed one. I don't remember
25 A Right.

what happened with the Lodge contract
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Page 22 Page 24 |3
1 Q Do you recall Contract Number 2008-0044? 1 A TIdon'tremember. Ifit was on the Lodge contract, I
2 A No,Idonot, 2 would say I probably wasn't because Victor was -- had
3 Q Do yourecall a contract that you -- 3 the contract with BBE for the Lodge contract, unless T
4 A Tfyou--if you show me that little title or the RRFP, 4 was asked, but I don't remember being at that meeting,
5 T could -~ the number itself I'm not going to remember, 5 Q With respect fo this contract, 2008-0044, do you recall
6 Q Do you recall a contract that you were managing with BBF | 6 Miss Foster approaching you at any point in time
7 that you actually cut in half? 7 requesting interim evaluations for you related to BBF's
8 A No,idonot. 8 performance on that contract?
9 (Whereupon Deposition Exhibit Number 9 A Tdonot. Tcan' think of any.
10 1 was marked for identification,) 10 (Whereupon Deposition Exhibit Number
11 MR. WILLIAMS: Okay. Mr. Voigt, I'm 11 2 was marked for identification.)
12 handing you what's been marked as Voigt Deposition 12 MR, WILLIAMS: Mr. Voigt, I'm
13 Exhibit 1, which is a series of documents that start 13 handing you what's been marked as Jason Voigt Deposition
14 with a Complaint that was prepared by Miss Foster 14 Exhibit 1 -- 2, I'm sorry. I'm asking you to take a
15 complaining about the change in the level of the 15 look at that. It is BBF's Title TV Complaint form to
16 contract 2008-0044, and where she asserts, that at least 16 the Federal Highway Administration.
17 in part, you cut the contract in haif, Tf you can take 17 THE WITNESS: Okay.
18 a look at it and see if you -~ if that refreshes your 18 BY MR, WILLIAMS:
19 recollection at all. 19 Q Does that document refresh your recotlection at all?
20 MR, DITTENBER: I'm going to object 20 A Tjust--Tdon't remember,
21 to the characterization of the document, 21 Q Do you recall filling out any interim evaluation forms H
22 MR, WILLIAMS: And from time to 22 for BBF Engineering regarding a Contract 2008-0044? i
23 time the lawyers will Jodge objections. To the extent 23 A And that was the one -- was that the one active when I ;
24 you can answer the question, please do. 24 had lefi? e %
25 25 Q VYes. ;
Page 23 Page 25 i
1 BY MR, WILLIAMS: 1 A Tremember being asked by Mr. Judnic fo fill out an 3
2 Q Do youhave any recollection of that series of events? 2 application -- or fill out a -- look at doing a review i
3 A Notuntil Ijustread it. Imean obviously something 3 after I had left. H
4 happened. 4 Q And you were asked to fill out an evaluation by §
5 Q Youjust don't recall what? 5 Mr. Judnic after you had lefi? i
6 A Idon't--Idon't remember the defails. 6 A (Nodding) %
7 Q Would you have had autonomy within your positionto | 7 Q While you -- yes? i
8 reduce the level of a contract, or the length ofa 8 A I'msotry. 3
9 contract without approval from your supervisor? 8 Q Yes? :
10 A What do you mean by the autonomy? 10 A Yes., After Thad left, i
11 Q The ability, the authority. 11 Q And while you were in Nevada? ¢
12 A Asthe project engineer, I would have had the abilityto |12 A Yes. :
13 do that. 13 Q Anddo you recall when you completed that evaluation? |
14 Q Youjust don't recall how or why, or who mayhave been | 14 A My best guess would be October 0f 2008, after I had 3
15 involved in making the decision, as you sit here today? 15 left. That's my best guess. Maybe November, 3
16 A (Shaking head) 16 Q Did you exchange it by e-mail or facsimile? ;
17 Q Yougot to answer yes orno. 17 A Ithink it went both ways, and, you know, I remember §
18 A Oh,I'msorry. No,Idonot. Idonot. JustTdonot 18 discussing it, or sending it to Victor before finalizing
19 remember, 19 it, because I knew -- you know, just making sure that he |
20 Q Didyou participate at all in a meeting that occurredin = | 20 was in agreement with what 1 was posted, or as he was i
21 about July of 2008 between Mr. Judnic and other 21 taking over the contract, and would have to answer any %
22 representatives of MDOT, Miss Foster, Love Charles and | 22 concetns with it. i
23 others regarding the evaluation of BBF Engineer's 23 Q And what were your discussions about the interim i
24 performance, and Mr. Charles' performance on another - | 24 evaluation? ;
A

A Tdon't remember the specific discussion, but I just
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Page 26 Page 28

1 remember discussing it with him, 1 requesting debriefing meetings, or interim evaluation

2 Q Washe the only person you discussed it with? 2 meetings with you?

3 A Ibelieve -- I can't remember if Steve Griffith was 3 A Itlooks like she did.

4 involved or not, 4 Q Do yourecall why that evaluation meeting never took

5 Q Why would Steve Griffith have been involved? 5 place?

6 A Because I believe Steve Griffith was the one who 6 A Idonot. Lknow Iwas taking a lot of time off'in

7 initially contacted me. 7 August and September, making my arrangements for my

8 Q Didyou have any meetings with Miss Foster regarding 8 move, and I think Victor wanted to be involved, and 1

9 BBF's performance on the contract, any contracts that 9 think he had some time off, and Rita.
10 you were overseeing? 10 Q Ritawanted to be involved?
11 A Idon'tremember any in particular. Tkind of remember {11 A Tthiuk, Tcan'tremember,
12 maybe she would stop by the office and we would chatfor |12 Q  But you do remember that Victor wanted to be involved?
13 -afewminutes. Ijustdon't--Idon't remermber like 2 13 A Tthtink Victor wanted to be involved knowing that he was
14 formal, structuréd review, if you will. 14 going to be taking over the contract upon my departure
15 Q Are you familiar with the term debriefing meeting? 1% from State service. )
16 A Yes, 16 Q Ifyouturn to what is identified as Bate stamp
17 Q And what is a debriefing meeting? 17 Pages 316 and 317,
18 A A debriefing meeting could be a mesting maybe aftera |18 A Um-hmm,
19 proposal -~ proposals were submitted, and one consultant |19 Q  Are you familiar with that document?
20 wasn't selected and they would like to have, you know, 20 A It looks like an evaluation I reviewed.
21 comtments, just general feedback on how their proposal, 21 Q s this the interim evaluation that you completed?
22 the quality of their proposal, or the content, or the - 22 A Yes. This is an evaluation T did work on with Victor.
23 Jjust the whole proposal as a whole, and maybe what 23 Q With Victor?
24 improvements could be made, or what changes thatcould |24 A~ Well, Tcompleted it and Thad himreviewit.
25 be made to, you know, do better in the future, 25 Q Tsthe signhature that's on the second page of the

Page 27 : Page 29

1 You could have a debriefing after 1 document, is that your signature?

2 the completion of a project, you know, when the 2 A Yes. ' :

3 contract’s closed out, kind of discuss positives, 3 Q And the signature is dated, basically the last date of

4 negatives, things that went on during the course of-a 4 your department from MDOT. Ts that right? :

5 contract, 5 A Approximately. i

6 Q Did Miss Foster ever approach you about having any 6 Q Well, Ithought you said you completed the form in

7 debriefing meetings with her? 7 October, ot -~

8 A Not that I can remember. 8 A Youknow, I think maybe I may have done this before 1

9 (Whereupon Deposition Exhibit Number 9 left. I can't remember when I completed this. I might
10 3 was marked for identification.) 10 have done it after I had started it, and forgot to turn i
11 MR. WILLIAMS: Mr. Voigt, I've 11 it in before L left, I really can't remember, :
12 handed you what's been marked as Voigt Exhibit Number3, | 12 Q Is it possible that somebody else also may have had
13 and T ask you to take a look at that series of that 13 input on the form? '
14 documents, which were previously marked in the 14 A Again I discussed this with Victor,
15 Deposition of Mr, Judnic, 15 Q Well, in the form itself, was it something that was just i
16 BY MR. WILLTAMS: 16 on the computer as a PDF that you could enter :
17 Q Allright. Mr. Voigt, if you take a look at what is in 17 information in to? 3
18 the lower-right hand cornet, it looks like -- there are 18 A Oh,yes. Yes,yes. i
19 some numbers. 19 Q Okay. Ithink that's my question, so is it possible %
20 A Um-hmm, 20 that you completed certain portions, and Victor i
21 Q One that ends with 314, It's about three pages in. Do 21 completed other portions, or M. Judnic? {
22 you see that e-mail? ) 22 A T--Tdon't thinkso. Tdon't know. Ycan't--1I i
23 A Yes,Ido 23 can't -- T honestly can't remember exactly when this !
24 Q Oraseries of e-mails. Does this refresh your 24 form was filled out. I remember -- [ remember working |3
25 recollection as to whether Miss Foster might have been 25 on this thing, _ : j

8 (Pages 26 to 29).
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: i
1 Q Okay. Ifiyou look at what is Bate stamped Page 317, 1 evaluation? i
2 A Um-hmm. 2 A ldon't remember contacting her,
3 Q There's a box that says what suggestions for improvement | 3 Q Do you know Chris Schafer?
4 would you have for this firm. Do you see that box? 4 A Idonot.
5 A  Um-hmm, 5 Q Linda Shepard?
6 Q Do you see the suggestion that is in the box? 6 A No,Idonot,
7 A Umhmm, 7 Q DeanHarr? H-g-r-r,
8 Q Andyes? That's yes? 8 A No,
9 A Yes. Yes. Sonry. 9 Q Have you had any conversations with anyone from the
10 Q Noproblem, Isthat the suggestion that you put in the 10 Office of Commission Audits regarding BBF Engineering?
11 box? . 11 A Notthat I can remember, no. Canyou give me some names r*
12 A T--Ithink Idid, can't remember for sure. 12 of people from there? I don't -
13 Q Soyou think you wrote when MDOT management makesa | 13 Q  You don't know them at all?
14 decision about billing or staffing, BBF should adhere to 14 A (Shaking head)
15 the decision of MDOT without question or justification 15 Q No? .
16 by MDOT? 16 A Ican't--no. Ifthose are the people you just named, i;
17 A AgainTcan't - Ican't remember. 17 I don't - ;
18 Q And you cannot remember if that was you, or if somebody |18 Q Did you ever, on a contract like this 2008-0044, where i
19 else put that in? 19 you were the project engineer, tell Miss Foster that as
20 A I 20 & principal of BBF that she could not bill for any time
21 MR. DITTENBER: Objection, asked and 21 that she put in on the project?
22 answered, 22 A Idon'tremember,
23 MR. WILLIAMS: You can go ahead. 23 Q Do you recall whether you were awars of any policy,
124 . THB WITNESS: T--T--T--Tdon't 124 __ guideline orrule at MDOT that precluded working
25 - agam L remember filling this form ¢ out and that's 25 principals from billing on professional service
Page 31 Page 33
1 about all I can tell you. 1 consulting contracts?
2 BY MR. WILLIAMS: 2 A Ilremember something along the lines of, you know, that
3 Q Okay, but I'm talking specifically about this box, about 3 they're not like a -- actually working on the projects
4 this box for suggestions. Do you remember 4 for the departments, that they could not bill, but if
5 specifically ~- 5 you had like a - like a senior project engineer that's
6 A Iremember discussing it. I can’t remember any more 6 organizing, that would -- you know, in charge of the
7 specifically, 7 work, like if it was in a design, and like whoever is -
8 Q Do youremember discussing the suggestion with sonteone? | 8 how do you want to put this -- like, you know, the
9 A With Victor. 9 people on the forefront, you could bill for, the péople
10 Q And what was the nature of the discussion regarding the 10 on the front line. The people that are kind of, you
11 suggestion? 11 know, orchestrating in the background, or running in the
12 A I'msorry? 12 background could not,
13 Q What was the nature of your discussion with Mr. Judnic 13 Q Soifaprincipal was a -- sort of a working component
14 regarding this suggestion? 14 of the team, they could bill for that time. If they
15 A Idon'tremember, I mean looking through these e-mails, 15 were just -~
16 there must have been an issue with BBF «- or, excuse me, 16 A Like ifthey were on the pro;ect, or they were
17 with Wade Trim. [ honestly don't remember though, 17 administering the contract, then, yes, they could, but
18 Q Did Mr. Judnic approve the interim evaluation form? 18 like the senior --
19 A [remember sending -- or I remember discussing it with 19 Q Passive income?
20 him before I signed it. He gave me his blessing, 20 A Senior -~ well, the senior people, senior staff Twould  §
21 Q You just don't remember when that was? 21 say. i
22 A Idon'tknow, 22 Q Ifitwas just basically -- i
23 Q No? 23 A Unless the senior -- you know, if they were actually the
24 A No,[donot. ' 24 project engineer, they were doing the day-to-day work,
25 Q Dnd you ever contact MISS Foster regarding this interlm 25 thmgs llke that
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1 Q Didyouhave anyrole in the Gateway Project at ali? 1 that?
2 A IranPhaseIll 2 BY MR, WILLIAMS:
3 Q Whatwas Phase [TI? 3 Q Doyou have any -- do you participate in evaluation of
4 A It was contract -- or it was Job Number -~ God, T don't 4 Request for Proposals at NDOT at all?
5 remember, It had a bunch of repeating numbers in it 5 A Thave notyet. I have not, Ijusthaven'thada
6 It was the railroad bridge, Michigan Avenue bridge, and 6 scenario when I would have had to, You know, I haven't
7 the new exit to Vernor. It was like sixteen-million 7 been in a position, you know.
8 dollars I believe. Walter told me -- well, Walter told 8 Q Doyouknow Marilyn Caldwell?
9 me that's a big project, but -- 9 A Yes.
10 Q Do youknow if BBF bid for any segment of that work? {10 Q I guess it's Madlyn Caldwell.
11 A Tdon't recall, because that was a -- that was 11 A Madlyn, yeah.
12 originally a full construction engineering. I remember 12 Q Have youspoken to her at all?
13 Tetra Tech was the one selected for that job, I don't 13 A Isawher. I've seen her, yes.
14 remember BBF, if they were a part of one of the teams 14 Q ‘When was the last time you saw her?
15 that put in for it. I do not recall. 15 A Today.
16 Q Did you have any role in the Southfield Freeway repaving { 16 Q  Where did you see her today?
17 project? 17 A TIstopped at the other office,
18 A No. 18 Q Atwhich other office?
19 Q Have you ever, yourself, conducted any impression 13 A Atthe Detroit TSC.
20 debriefing meeting with a subcontractor or a prime 20 Q Have you had any discussions with anyone about
21 contractor? 21 Miss Foster’s litigation against Mr. Judnic and
22 A 'Withacontractor? 22 Mr. Steucher?
23 Q Oraconsultant. 23 A 1just--you know, people brought it up. A reporter
24 A Yes. .. o ... _|24 _ fromFoxNewscalledme,and.
25 Q Onhow many occasnons? 25 Q Anybody else? :
Page 35 Page 37
1 A I--Iwould say about a handful. Maybe about five. 1 A Marilyn asked me why I was down here, and I fold her. |
2 Q Okay. A 2 Q Whatdid you tell her? :
3 A Probably less. 3 A Twas going for a Deposition, H
4 Q Have you ever heard Mr. Judnic, in referring to 4 Q Did she tell you she had had her Deposition taken 3
5 Miss Foster, indicate that he did not believe that any 5 as well? !
6 wornan should be making the kind of money that she was| 6 A - Um-hmm, ’3
7 making? 7 Q Anything else? H
8 A No. 8 A No. i
9 Q Didyou hear any statements at all being made about 9 Q Anyone else you discussed it with? !
10 Miss Foster refative to her gender or her race? 10 A Uh-uh H
11 A No. 11 Q No? Youdid not discuss it with Mr. Judnic? §
12 Q Didyou ever have any discussions with Mr. Steucher {12 A No. Ihave not spoken to M, Judnic, ]
13 regarding Miss Foster? 13 Q And youhaven't discussed it with M, Steucher?
14 A No. 14 A Thave not spoken to M. Steucher, i
15 Q Didyou ever review any Request for Proposals or 15 Q What about the attorney general's office? z
16 Qualifications that were issued by Mr, Steucher's 16 A Ispoke with them regarding scheduling this meeting. ;
17 office where BBF was submitting a response? 17 Q Andthat'sit?
18 A No. . 18 A Um-hmm, 5
19 Q Areyou involved at all in evaluating Request for 19 Q Yes? §
20 Proposals at NDOT? 20 A Yes, Yes, Sotry, i
21 MR. DITTENBER: Objection, 21 MR, WILLIAMS: All right, Thank i
22 relevance. 22 you, Mr. Voigt, %
23 MR, WILLIAMS: Youcangoaheadand |23 M. Dittenber may have some 1
24 answer : 24 questions for you. |
25 THB WITNESS Am I - can you repeat i

MR. DITTENBER 1do have a fow
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1 brief questions for you. 1 sentence?
2 My name is Mike Dittenber, and I am 2 A Again that was -~ from what | remember, that was -- I
3 am an attorney general for the State of Michigan, and I 3 don't know If it was a policy or a statement from -- I
4 am representing Mr, Judnic and Mr. Steucher in this 4 don't remember who it came from, but I remember we were
5 litigation. 5 kind of directed that, you know, the consulting
6 REDIRECT EXAMINATION 6 principals, or the -- you know, the top - the top
7 BY MR. DITTENBER: 7 person, people in a company, unless they were on the
8 Q Do youhave an understanding of the contract that -- if 8 job, they could not be included as budgeted hours, and
9 I refer to a contract, it's Contract 2008-0044? 9 they were, you know, considered the overhead expenses
10 A Was that an as-needed contract? 10 that were allowed by the contract.
11 Q No,itsa-- 11 Q Areyou able to recail who required that --
12 A For various services? 12 A Idonot.
13 Q Could I have you look at Exhibit 1 at Number 000034, 13 Q Sentence be put -~
14 MR. WILLIAMS: This is Exhibit 1. 14 A Idonot.
15 THE WITNESS: Okay. This contract 15 Q Do yourecall if it would have been someone at the
16 -- okay, yep. Yep. Yes. Yes. 16 Detroit TSC, or someone in Lansing?
17 BY MR. DITTENBER: 17 MR, WILLIAMS: Objection, asked and
18 Q And 000034 and the followmg pages? 18 answered,
19 A Yes. 19 THE WITNESS: Ireally -- I really
20 Q Isthatascope -~ 20 don't remember who ~- who within MDOT that would have -
21 A That looks like a scope of services for ~- yes, 21 that would have said that -~ you know, said that, I i
22 Q Forservice -~ the project manager for this? 22 remember this being -- this exact sentence being in ;
23 A Yes. 23 almost all of my RFPs that I put out during the course
24 Q__Who would have prepared this scope of service document? | 24 _of my time, you know, beingat MDOT, |
25 A Tknow I worked onit. Iknow Victor worked on it, 1 25
Page 39 Page 41
1 know Steve Griffith worked on it. 1 BY MR. DITTENBER:
2 Q OnPage 000035 -- 2 Q Do you have an understanding of the term price proposal?
3 A Um-hmm, 3 A Yes
4 Q Do yousee the last sentence? 4 Q Canyoudescribe it for me?
5 A Yes. 5 A Aprice proposal is after the selection of the
6 Q That goes on to the ne‘ct page? 6 consultant, the price proposal puts together the hours
T A Yes. 1 from the prime consultant, and then you'll have
8 Q Anddoyou have a recollection of what the intent of 8 break-outs by the individual's name, their rates of pay,
9 that sentence was? ' 9 overhead, factor possibly mileage, vehicle expenses,
10 A The intent of that was -- with the as-needed contracts 10 computer expenses; any direct expenses for the project,
11 that I had been involved with, the -- given the economy 11 and then the -~ you know, for not onty the prime
12 then, maybe still now, but the economy, we didn't know 12 consultant, but then they'll have backup sheets for any
13 exactly what projects were going to be constructed, We 13 sub-consultants that are with them, again breaking out
14 didn't know what contracts were going to go out for bid. 14 the same amount, estimated hours,
15 We did not know our -- you know, we didn't know what -~ | 15 You know, costs, some costs are
16 how much work we were going to have, and T remember this | 1.6 direct costs. Some costs are actual, depending on the
17 paragraph, this was -- T know -- T remember it was 17 consultant, depending on what's in their overhead rate.
18 discussed a lot, it was, you know, we needed to have the 18 You know, it's just broken out, and then the cost
19 flexibility to adjust the hours of all personnel that 19 proposal is submitted, There's usually negotiations on
20 were assigned to the project based on the actual work 20 hours, you know, for different personnel on the project,
21 load that we would get. 21 and, you know, you go through negotiations, and then
22 Q What about the specific sentence that starts consultant 22 when the project manager for MDOT and the project g
23 principals, and continues on fo the next page there? 23 manager for the consultant agree, then the price d
24 A Yes. 24 proposal is then finalized, and if T remember it goes up 3
in_Q Do you have any recol[ectlon of the intent of that 25 to Lansing and somebody processes and executes the §

PTTTe T
T T X L TP T Y L LY X S L B TS e R i SR T 3 T T

11 (Pages 38 to 41)

s 248.851.3333 EMAIL:  HalprinCourtgaol.con

§5800267-f3668-4803-b%ae-63ac6928653f

JUDITH HALPRXW COURT REPORTING & VIDEO * * * TELEPHONE: 248.851.3332 + + ¢ TFax




_ 2:11-cv-14853-NGE-LJM Doc # 51-3 Filed 01/18/13 Pg 12 of 57 Pg D 2193
JASON VOIGT

LA EST

JUDITH HALPRIN COURT REPORTING & VIDEQ ¢ * ¢

December 7, 2012
Page 42 Page 44
1 contract, 1 remember that end of service, or completion of service
2 Q Did you negotiate the price proposal for the 2 ones were required, Interim, I don't remember doing
3 Contract 2008-0044? 3 very many of them, if any at all, other than a couple.
4 A Twould assume I did. Idon't remember doing it, but 4 BY MR, DITTENBER: -
5 T'm sure I did. 5 Q Do yourecall if there was any MDOT requirement to -- |3
6 Q Doyourecall if there were any hours set aside for 6§ A Idon't--
7 Miss Foster's direct time in the price proposal? 7 Q To perform intetim evaluations? : £
8 A Idonotremember. 8 A Idon't remember. I don't recall any policy or i
9 Q Doyou recall if she was allowed to bill her time? 9 requirement for interim evaluations from MDOT,
10 A My best guess is that she would have not been.allowed to | 10 Q  Inyour discussions with Mr. Judnic regatding this
11 bill her time because she was the project prmcxpa[ for 11 interim evaluation, do you recall him directing you to
12 BBF Engineering, 12 fill out the interim evaluation in a cettain way?
13 Do you recall Miss Foster doing any of the day-to-day 13. MR, WILLIAMS: Objection to the --
14 work on that project? 14 THE WITNESS: Idon't -
15 A 'No,Idonot. Miss Foster was more of a schedulerkind | 15 MR, WILLIAMS: Form of the question,
16 of -~ Miss Foster was the -- you know, T would call. T 16 THE WITNESS: Remember him directing
17 would contact her for personnel changes, or assignment 17 me. I more or less remember us discussing the various |
18 changes, or if I needed a certain type of inspector, or 18 responses, you know, discussing the various things that
19 if T needed, you know, a certain type of tester, or 19 had taken place during the course of the contract.
20 things like that. T do remember a lot of times I was 20 BY MR. DITTENBER:
21 directed by her to just go directly to the 21 Q Do yourecall any specific concerns you had with the
22 sub-consultant and deal with them directly, you know, to | 22 BBF's performance at the time of this intetim
23 get their -- get their time on - you know, to have them 23 evaluation?
124 come out and perform services for us. _|24 A Tremember --I remember that there was an issue with.
25 Q Did Mr. Judnic ever direct you not to allow Miss Foster |25 Love Charles, and working on something for Vietor, and
Page 43 Page 45
1 to bill to your contract? 1 lacking certifications from contractors, Looking at
2 A Idon't remember him directly requesting it. I remember | 2 this e-mail, I remember -- I kind of remember the issue
3 this being more of a global rule, or policy, or 3 with Wade Trim, and wanting to bill over what was §
4 something like that within MDOT. 4 authorized on their price proposal. The guy, the i
5 Q Could I have you laok at Exhibit 3, Page 000316, 5 person from -- the individual from Fishbeck, Thompson,
6 A Okay. 6 Carr and Huber, you know, leaving, you know, going on to
7 Q Did M. Judnic ever direct you not to meet with 7 another project or something, i
8 Miss Foster regarding an interim evaluation? 8 I remember sometimes the |
9 A Idon't remember him directing me not to meet with her, | 9 ‘communication between ~ with Bellandra was sometimes
10 but I remember him wanting to be involved when we did | 10 difficult, or incomplete. I don't remember specifics, :
11 meet with her, and if ] remember correctly, Mr. Judnic 11 but I remember there sometimes being a breakdown in i
12 had taken some time off right around Labor Day that 12 communication, !
13 year, and then I was leaving later that month, and I 13 I mean if'you can -~ I remember this
14 remember -- I just remember that others wanted to meet | 14 from looking at this now, Iremember -- let me look, !
15 with her with me before I left because, if anything came | 15 Let me find one. ’;
16 up from it, they wanted to be aware of what tcok on 16 If you -- for example, if you look ;
17 because I had -- you know, I was leaving State service. 17 on -~ this is labeled Voigt Exhibit Number 1, on sheet
18 Q Did youregularly provide consultants with interim 18 BBF 000047, and if you look at this e-mail from
19 evaluations? 19 Bellandra here, about a third of the way down the page,
20 MR, WILLIAMS: Objection -- 20 you can see her e-mail, for whatever reason, put 4 bunch
21 THE WITNESS: Idon't remember, 21 of question marks, and sometimes there were words
22 MR, WILLIAMS: To the form of the 22 truncated, like on this page, and I remember a lot of
23 question, 23 times having to ask for clarification on things like
24 MR. WILLIAMS: T don't remember 24 that,
25 regularly - regularly doing mterlm ones. 1do 2 5 T don't know if it was her e-mail
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1 program or our e-mail. Again you can see it again on 1 A Yes.
2 Page 49, and so I mean this maybe a - this is kind of 2 Q Soshe seems to be asking you where does she locate her
3 an example, but I remember other times there were things | 3 other three proposals. Is that not the question that
4 that were truncated and needed clarification. 4 she's posing? I'm just looking at the sentence that you
5 Q Do you recall Mr, Charles' role in -~ on this project? 5 referenced,
6 A Mr, Charles was a DBE specialist that would work with 6 A Okay. Yeah, Inthis scenario, yes, yes.
7 the DBE, MBE, or WBE coniractors, soliciting work from | 7 Q Imean so she says --
8 primes to be on projects. He would work with any 8 A Yes
9 disputes that these contractors would have with the 9 Q Where are my other three proposals?
10 prime contractors or with the DOT. 10 A Right
11 He also performed what would be 11 Q And then she follows that by a question mark, or two
12 categorized as office technician work with a field 12 question marks?
13 manager, performing pay estimates, approving materials {13 A In that sentence, yes.
14 and certifications, importing IDRs from field personnel; 14 Q Youreferenced that there were others that wanted to be
15 you know, traditional filing, traditional office tech. 15 involved in this meeting with Miss Foster, Who were
16 work for a constraction project. 16 those others?
17 Q Did you ever -- do you recall ever informing Mr. Charles {17 A For sure it was Victor,
18 that be was not allowed to attend meetings? 18 Q Was there somebody else?
19 A No. _ 19 A The only other person T can think of would have been
20 Q Do you recall Mr, Judnic ever directing you to inform 20 Rita Screws.
21 M. Charles that he was not allowed to attend meetings? |21 Q  What things in BBF's performance led to the language in
22 A No. 22 the suggestion box on Exhibit 3, on that question,
23 Q Tfyoulookat -~ back to Exhibit 3, 000316 the inferim 23 Exhibit 316, 3172
24 _evaluation, . ... e | 24 AL 316,307 - - -
25 A Yes. 25 Q [Ithinkit's Exhibit 3,
Page 47 Page 49
1 Q Isthere anything in this document that is inconsistent | 1 A 316,317,
2 with your recollection of how you filled out this 2 Q 1thinkit's really 317.
3 document? 3 A 317, okay. Which one again?
4 MR. WILLIAMS: Objectiontotheform { 4 Q The suggestion box, what things in there?
5 of the question. 5 A Well, again I think the first sentence refers to the
6 THE WITNESS: No. This was 6 issue with the Wade Trim, and the surveying, and then I
7 consistent with what Victor and I discussed. 7 think they're both kind of -- T think they're both
8 MR, DITTENBER: I don't have any 8 refated to that issue. '
9 further questions, 9 Q When MDOT project management makes a decision about
10 MR, WILLIAMS: Okay, since your 10 bitling or staffing, that refers to Wade Trim?
11 memory is getting better, Mr. Voigt, 11 A Yes.
12 RECROSS-EXAMINATION 12 Q And then what about the second sentence?
13 BY MR. WILLIAMS:; 13 A Ibelieve that would refer to the reference to the Wade
14 Q Ifyoulook atthe Page 47 of Exhibit 2, it appears that | 14 Trim as well,
15 -- a question mark generally means that a person is 15 Q So this was both related to her utilization of Wade |
16 asking a question. Is that right? 16 Trim?
17 A Um-hmm, 17 A From whatT can recollect, yes.
18 Q Yes? That's yes? 18 Q Andyou just don't recall which one of you came up with
19 A Yes. Yes. Sorry. 19 this language, whether it was you or Victor?
20 Q Andso it appears that in this e-mail that you 20 A Again it was, you know, a mutual.
21 referenced, spontaneousty, that you -~ Miss Foster 21 Q Amutual?
22 seemed to be inquiring about the location of the 22 A Amutual kind of working because Victor was going to be
23 remainder of certain proposals that BBF had submitted? | 23
24 A Um-hmm, 24

avatlable to-answer any questions because he was going
to have those roles and responsibilities npon my
departure.
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1 Q Inthis negotiation of the price proposal, did you have 1 Q Didyouhave any issues with him?
2 unilateral authority to arrive -- as a project engineer 2 A ‘Theonly issues that would -- you know, came up were his
3 to reach a final decision on the price proposal, or did 3 time and attendance at meetings, and we discussed a flex
4 that have to be run by your supervisor? 4 time schedule in order to -- you know, so he could
5 A  IknowIremember working on the price proposal with 5 attend those meetings,
6 Victor, 6 When you're talking about meetings, you're talking DBE
7 Q Were there any situations in which you allowed a 1 meetings?
8 principal to bill on a contract that you -- where you 8 A DBE meetings and things like that, pre-bid stuff.
9 were the project engineer? 9 Q Whenyou talk about a flex time schedule, you're talking
10 A NotthatT can recall after that policy was communicated | 10 about is really to just sott of manage going in and
11 to me, 11 out -«
112 Q Didyou have any understanding of what Miss Foster's 12 A Right
13 role was in terms of working on contracts in her office? 13 Q To goto DBE meetings?
14 Did you discuss that with her at all? 14 A Right.
15 A Iremember it was probably identified in her RRFP, and 1 | 15 MR. WILLIAMS: Okay. Thank you, H
16 wonld have to review that, but she was more of the 16 Mr. Voigt. i
17 organizer, central - 17 MR. DITTENBER: 1 don't have any
18 Q Is that something she told you, or is that something 18 further questions,
19 that you -- 19 {Whereupon at about 12:00 o'clock, noon, the
20 A That's just what I recollect. 20 Deposition was concluded.)
21 Q Okay, but did you ever have a discussion with her about |21 %k
22 what she -- 22
23 A Yrememberwe had like a kick-off meeting, if youwill, |23
124 _ early on inthis, you know, with all thesubsto. _. _. }24 . _ B} .
25 discuss, you know, what we knew at that time was the 25 !
Page 51 Page 53 %
1 work coming down and what -~ what needs we would be STATR ORI ) v TUBLC
2 h?wing, but I do not recolle?t Miss Foster }'la.ving any COUNTY O OAXLAND ) *
’Z‘ dlretcrt e;‘gineering or technical responsibilities on the 1 JUDITHHALPRIN, 3 Notuy Pl
contract, i .
5 Q Andyou're talking 2008-00447 il and o the Couty of Gkind, St of i, o
6 A Yeah. That's -- that's -- because, you know, we had the hecely ouiiy hat e Wit whossallachod Depostion wes
7 - you know, the project, the -~ you know, I mean the ke beforo e the enited e was oo sy
8 highest one that was listed here was the - on that RRFP ho i, tho whale tuth, and polhing bt th s that
9 was the - where is that thing -~ on this Page 35, if I tha testimony coctined fn said Deposition was taken by o by
10 remember correctly, the project engineer part-time was mesns of Steoomusk; hat said testinoay was thecesfier veduced
11 the gentleman from Fishbeck, Thompson, Carr and Huber. to written form and that the said Deposition 154 truo and
12 I could be wrong, but I thought that that was Tom Grey. corret transcript of tho testimoay ghven by ssid witrwss.
13 Q Butmy question was simply did you have any Tdo further ceriify that fam not i
14 discusslons with Miss Foster? connpsted by blood o msrvisgs to any of the pasties, o their 3
15 A Tdon't r,ecall any. attorneys or agents; that T am not an employed of any of them; H
16 Q Did Mr. Charles work at all on Contract 2008-00442 oor am T ikerestod directly ¢ inditectly in thamatier in
17 A Yes. Hewas the office DBE technician, controversy eiher as counsel, ageat, atrmey o olbeewise
18 Q Didyou have any issues with his performance at all? I WITNESS WHIERECE, havo heumto i
19 A He was mainly being used for me fon: the -« I didn't -- st my bund end afised my oviacal seslat West Bloomficd,
20 1, myself; directly, he wasn't really doing anything County of Oskiand, Sinto of Michlgan s 31t sy of
21 directly for me, other than the DBE technicians. He was Decennber, 2012, i
22 perfortning office technician work on behatf of -- for
23 Victor. Todi Hlpri, COMR 3202
24 Q Okay. Well, I'm talking about you directly. Ndigan 0o Counte
25 A Me, directly - My Comaricion Bepices: 12182013

14 (Pages 50 to 53)
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BBF Engineering Services, P.C. and Bellandra Foster vs.
State of Michigan, Michigan Dept. of Transportation

Ray Stewart, Jr.
November 14, 2012

Page 1 Page 3
1 UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 1
EASTERN DISTRICT OF MICHIGAN 2 TABLE OF CONTENT S
2 SOUTHERN DIVISION 3
3 BBF ENGINEERING SERVICES, P.C., 4 WITNESS: RAY STEWART, JR,
a Michigan Corporation, and 5
4 BELLANDRA FOSTER, an individual,
5 Plaintiffs, ‘ 6
6 wvs. No. 11-14853-cv 7 BY MR. DITTENBER: Page
7 STATE OF MICHIGAN, a Michigan Public 8 Cross Examination . . . . . . . . 4
Corporation, MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF
8 TRANSPORTATION, a Department of the 9
State of Michigan, VICTOR JUDNIC, and
9 MARK STEUCHER, 10
10 Defendants, 11
11 / 12
12 13
Deposition of RAY STEWART, JR.,
13 Witness herein, taken pursuant to the Federal 14
Rules of Civil Procedure before Robin V. Darnbrook,
14 cCertified Shorthand Reporter, Notary Publig, Oakland 15
County, Michigan, at 535 Griswold, Suite 1000,
15 Detroit, Michigan on November 14, 2012 commencing at |q¢
9:58 a.m.
16 17
17 APPEARANCES: 18
18
WILLIAMS ACOSTA, PLLC 19
19 By: Avery K. Williams (P34731)
535 Griswold 20
20 Suite 1000
21 Detroit, Michigan 48226 21
22 Appearing for Plaintiffs 22
23 (Appearances continued) 23
24 |24
25 25
Page 2 Page 4
1
2 MICHAEL J. DITIENBER (P722238) 1 November 14, 2012
Assgistant Attorney Genera . o e
3 4th Floor Trgnsportation Building 2 I)eﬁxnt,hdlch1gan
425 West Ottawa Street
4 P.0. Box 30050 3 aile
5 L:?ms:.ng, Michigan 48909 4 RAY STEWART, IR,
6 Appearing for Defendants 5  Witness herein, having been first duly sworn to
" Also Present: Victor Judnic 6  testify the truth, the w119le truth and 'nothing
8 7 but the truth, was examined and testified as
5 8 follows:
10 S - .
11 10 MR. DITTENBER: Good morning,
12 11 Mr. Stewart.
13 12 THE WITNESS: Good morning,
14 13 MR. DITTENBER: Let the record reflect
15 14 this is the time and place for the taking of the
L6 15  deposition of Ray Stewart, a BBF employee.
16 THE WITNESS: Ray Stewart, Jr.
17 17 MR. DITTENBER: Ray Stewart, Jr.
18 18 THE WITNESS: If you're going to get it
19 19 official.
20 20 -
21 21 CROSS EXAMINATION
22 22 BY MR. DITTENBER:
23 23 Q Mr. Stewart, my name is Mike Dittenber. I'm an
24 24 Assistant Attorney General for the State of
25 25 Michigan. Irepresent Mr. Judnic and Mr. Steucher
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BBF Engineering Services, P.C. and Bellandra Foster vs. Ray Stewart, Jr.
State of Michigan, Michigan Dept. of Transportation November 14, 2012
Page 5 Page 7

1 in this litigation, in litigation that's been filed 1 A Excuse me?

2 by BBF Engineering Services, Incorporated and | 2 Q Are you referring to the State of Michigan?

3 Bellandra Foster and I just have some questions 3 A Yes, the State of Michigan, yes, the Highway

4 about some of your experiences and knowledge 4 Department, yes. I worked for the Highway

5 regarding the issues in the case. 5 Department for 30 years, the Highway Department,

6 I don't know if you ever had your 6 State of Michigan.

7 deposition taken before. The court reporter is 7 What positions did you hold with the Michigan

8 taking down everything we say today, so I'll just | 8 Highway Department?

9 ask that for her benefit, you keep your voice up 9 A What they call a tech, engineering tech. I worked
10 and that you give verbal answers because she can't |10 with the layout crew, worked with inspection, did
11 take down a head shake or a mm-hmm or a uh-uh, so |11 inspection, layout of the road, inspections, those
12 if you just try and say yes and no and I'll try to 12 two items and then finally, I was doing field
13 do the same. 13 manager when field manager came out.

14 If at any time during this deposition 14 Q And for the record, what is field manager?

15 you need a break, you need a few minutes, please {15 A Basically a recordkeeping program.,

16 let me know and we'll make sure you get that. Do |16 Q Is it a computer program?

17 you have any questions before we begin? 17 A Yes, itis.

18 A No. 18 Q Were you required to obtain any certifications or

19 Q Ifyou don't understand a question, please let me |19 license to be a technician?

20 know and I will repeat it or restate it; does that |20 A For office tech?

21 sound fair? 21 Q Yes.

22 A Yes. 22 A Initially, no. But after -- God, I don't know, I

23 Q Could you state your full name for the record? 23 guess 2008, the State of Michigan initiated a

24 A Ray Stewart, Jr. _ _ 24 program and I took the office tech class.

25 Q And how old are you, Mr. Stewart? 25 Q Were you still working at MDOT when you took the
Page 6 Page 8

1 A Sixty-four. 1 class for the first time?

2 Q Are you married? 2 A Yes. Wait a minute. No, I wasn't. No. No.

3 A Yes,Iam. 3 Because as a matter of fact, [ was one of the -- if

4 Q Do you have kids? 4 you go back and look at the records when they

5 A Thave one. 5 were -- when the State was developing field

6 Q And how old is that child? 6 manager, they used a lot of my work and they also

7 A Twenty-six. Twenty-six or 27. I think it's 26. 7 asked, you know, asked us for our opinion as to the

8 Q And could you briefly tell me about your 8 different items in field manager. So I would say

9 educational background? 9 with field manager from the initial startup.

10 A Thave two years of college, high school diploma {10 Q Justto be clear, while you were at MDOT, you were
11 and two years of college. 11 never required to take an office technician

12 Q And where did you complete those two years at, |12 training course?

13 which school? 13 A No, they didn't have an office tech training course
14 A Morehouse College in Atlanta, Georgia. 14 that I can recall, no.

15 Q Did you receive a degree? 15 Q Were you required to take any training or obtain
16 A No. No, it was a four-year college. I didn't 16 any licenses to operate the field manager

17 receive a degree. 17 software?

18 Q Could you please briefly describe your work 18 A No, not initially.

19 experience since the time you left college? 19 Q What MDOT location did you work from?

20 A Tworked for Bargain Town, which is Toys-R-Us now, |20 A My last location was the Detroit TSC.

21 for a winter season and from that, I started with |21 Q And who was your supervisor at the Detroit TSC, if
22 the State in about 1973 and I worked with the State |22 you recall?

23 up until 2004 -- no, 2002, I guess, when I 23 A Oh, I'm sorry, as a State employee?

24 retired. 24 Q Yes.

25 Q And are you referring to the State of Michigan? |25 A Oh, no. No. My last -- it would have been the
Min-U-Soript®@
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BBF Engineering Services, P.C. and Bellandra Foster vs,

State of Michigan, Michigan Dept. of Transportation

Ray Stewart, Jr.
November 14, 2012

Page 9 PageT
1 Taylor TSC and the supervisor would have been - | 1 Q Did you retire from MDOT?
2 oh, God. I can't think of his name. He's still 2 A Yes.
3 there, Victor knows. Oh, man, 3 Q And did you obtain additional employment after you
4 Q That's okay if you can't recall. 4 retired from MDOT?
5 A Yeah, right now I can't. Bill Urban, it was Bill 5 A I started working for BBF.
6 Urban and the other one was -- Bill Urban, 6 Q When did you start working for BBF?
7 Q Did you work at any locations other than the Taylor | 7 A August of 2002, I think it was August. But it was
8 TSC? 8 2002,
9 A Yes, Iworked for Jim Hanson, Robert Summers, Brian | 9 Q Did you interview with BBF?
10 Charboneau (ph), Roger Safford (ph) and Dennis |10 A Yes. ‘
11 Cooper and Bill Foster. I think that was aboutit. |11 Q Did you interview with any other consulting
12 Q What location did you work for Mr. Hanson at? |12 companies?
13 A Hanson -- let's see, where were we at? It wasat |13 A Yes, Hubbell, Roth & Clark.
14 the Greenfield and Mount Vernon office. 14 Q Did you interview with any construction
15 Q Do you recall where you worked at with 15 companies?
16 Mr. Summers? 16 A No.
17 A Suminers was at the -- what is that street? It was |17 Q How long have you known Bellandra Foster?
18 in Oak Park. I forgot the name that they call that {18 A Oh, man. Well, I knew her when she was working
19 office in Oak Park but it was in Oak Park. 19 as -- when she was an engineer for the State,
20 Q Do you recall with Mr. Charboneau? 20 that's when I met her. Exactly what year that was,
21 A Charboneau was in Oak Park at Greenfield and -- no, |21 that had to be in the 80's.
22 I'm sorry, Charboneau was at Lahser and Nine Mile. |22 Did you work directly with her when she was working
23 That's where he was at. 23 for the State?
24 Q What about Mr. Safford? o |24ANe. o
25 A Safford was at Greenfield and Mount Vernon. 25 Q Did you ever communicate with her while she was
Page 10 Page 12
1 Q And Mr, Loop? 1 working for the State?
2 A Mr. who? 2 A Yes, [did. Asamatter of fact, [ applied for a
3 Q Dennis? 3 position of -- in Permits and I, you know, went
4 A Oh, Cooper? 4 through the interview process and she was one of
5 Q Cooper, sorry. 5 the ones that interviewed me.
6 A Greenfield and Mount Vernon. 6 Q When did you first discuss employment with BBF with
7 Q And finally Mr. -- 7 Ms. Foster?
8 A Foster? 8 A Probably 2002. Before I retired from the State.
9 Q Mr. Foster? 9 Q What is your current position with BBE?
1120 A Foster was in Livonia, Plymouth and I guess the |10 A Lead worker, that's what it's called.
11 closest would have been Plymouth and Inkster Road, {11 Q And has that been your position since 2002?
12 closest cross street. 12 A No. WhenI started with BBF, I was working office
13 Did you hold the position of engineering technician {13 tech basically, which is in the office doing office
14 for your entire MDOT career? 14 tech. Every now and then if someone was, say,
15 A Well, yes. They had different classifications. 15 absent or whatever, I would go out in the field but
16 Like when I first started, it was like engineering |16 I was in the office the majority of the time,
17 07 and then it went from there to engineering 17 What were your responsibilities as an office tech
18 techs, say 9, 10, 11 butitused tobe 3, 5, 7and |18 for BBE?
19 10 or something. 19 A Well, I would post the IDRs from the people,
20 Q Despite the name changes, did your duties remain -~ |20 download the IDRs from the other employees,
21 A Pretty much the same. 21 inspectors and if they needed supplies, I would
22 Q --substantially the same? 22 furnish those, if possible, for them.
23 A Yes. 23 Q So we're clear for the record, by IDR, do you mean
24 Q Which year did you say you left MDOT? 24 Inspector Daily Report?
25 A Ithink it was 2002, 25 A Yes, Inspector Daily Report.
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Page 15

project?

A We were the prime. Well, the prime was Ajax,
that's who had the contract, Ajax, and we were
doing the inspection and the field manager work for
Ajax, so I don't know exactly what they call that.
We were doing the service end of the contract, yes.

Q Do you recall who the MDOT project manager for that
project was?

A Victor Judnic, I believe., Tknow it was out of
Detroit TSC with Victor and then from Victor, it
went to -- what was her name?

Q Possibly Tia Klein?

A TiaKlein. It wasn't Klein then but Tia Klein.

Q Do you recall what you did on the Noble School
project?

A Noble School project, it was oversee. What we used
to call it inspection, now I think they call it
overseer. So I laid out removals and we replaced
concrete, we replaced sidewalk, we replaced some
signs in the area. I, you know, laid out what
signs to be removed and replaced, the sidewalk,
wheelchair ramps is basically what we did.

Q And do you recall if BBF was the prime consultant

_to MDOT or a subconsultant? .
A We were sub. H -- not HNTB. Hubbell, Roth & Clark

Page 13
1 Q And what are your responsibilities now that you are
2 a lead worker?
3 A Pretty much the same. I am in and out of the
4 office. We had a job on Michigan Avenue that I was
5 doing the field manager for and I was working on
6 another job, what they call it, school district -
7 school safety job. We were putting in ramps and
8 sidewalks, I did those two concurrently and that's
9 a couple years ago when I did that.
10 Q Who is your current supervisor at BBF?
11 A Bellandra Foster,
12 Q And are you in charge of supervising any employees
13 at BBF?
14 A Yes.
15 Q And who would you consider yourself a supervisor
16 of?
17 A One was David Slate. Dave Slate. That was the
18 only -- yeah, that was the only one.
19 Q What did Mr. Slate do?
20 A He was what they call overseer, inspector.
21 Q While employed by BBF, have you performed work on
22 MDOT projects?
23 A Yes.
24 Q Do you recall which projects or which contracts
25 you've worked on?
Page 14
1 A The one on Michigan Avenue between Livernois and
2 12th, another one, the one the school -- which is
3 what is that? That was one of those federal set
4 aside type programs. That one, I worked at Noble
5 School, Burnes and two other schools here., One is
6 on Lonyo south of Michigan Avenue and the other one
7 was -- where was that at? It was over on the west
8 side also, not too far from -- God, Lonyo and
9 Cecil, I think it was. I think it was the street
10 right in that area. Right now I can't recall the
11 name of the school.
12 Q Do you recall what year you worked on the Michigan

13 Avenue project?

14 A Well, the Michigan Avenue project, Dave Slate
15 worked on it but if he needed help, you know, I
16 would go out and assist him and that was -- you
17 know, [ mean I may spend two hours out there with
18 him or an hour out there. If he had questions, I
19 would, you know, try and answer his questions. So
20 I did not work on the project per se as far as

21 making out IDRs, no, I didn't do that. I just go
22 and answer his questions if he had questions about
23 the job.

24 Q Do yourecall if BBF was a prime or subconsultant
25 to the Department for the Michigan Avenue

© 0 N oy ;W R
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Page 16

was doing the -- was the prime. I was just doing
the inspection. I did not do field manager,
Hubbell, Roth & Clark had the job.

Q Was that also out of the Detroit TSC?

A Yes.

Q Do you recall who the project manager was for that
project for MDOT?

A Tbelieve Steve Griffith. I'm not a hundred
percent sure,

Q And do you recall about when the Noble School
project took place? _

A Thisis'12,'11. Ibelieve it's 2010, 2010 or
2011. ButI believe it was '10,

Q Have you performed office technician duties for
MDOT as a consultant?

A Yes. Michigan Avenue was one project. The project
on Michigan Avenue between Livernois and 12th
Street.

Q Do you recall performing office technician duties
on any other MDOT projects?

A As an employee for BBF?

Q Yes.

A Okay. Yes, when I worked out at Taylor TSC but-
when I retired, I was at Taylor TSC in 2002 and I

turned around and went back to Taylor and continued
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Page 17 Page 19 |

1 to work at Taylor until a couple years, T think it 1 TSC and said hello. We greeted each other.,

2 was, before we moved out of Taylor, the company | 2 Q Are you familiar with a gentleman named Mark

3 lost the contract at Taylor., And I did office tech | 3 Steucher?

4 there at Taylor for both Urban and Sanford. John | 4 A Yes.

5 Sanford was the other engineer. Idid office tech | 5 Q How do you know Mr. Steucher?

6 for both of them. 6 A Let's see. When I worked for Jim Hanson, Mark

7 Q Do you recall any other instances when you 7 Steucher became Mr. Hanson's assistant engineer

8 performed office technician duties for MDOT asa | 8 and -- yes.

] BBF employee other than at the Taylor TSC andon | 9 Q Do you recall when you first met Mr. Steucher?
10 the Michigan Avenue project? 10 A 1998, 1999, somewhere around there.

11 A Yes, the Taylor TSC and I did some office work at |11 Q Was Mr. Steucher ever your supervisor?

12 the Detroit TSC also. We had a person at the 12 A He was the assistant engineer, so yes, he would

13 Detroit TSC that was doing the office tech but when |13 have been considered my -- could have been my

14 he was off or on vacation, I sat in for him. 14 supervisor, yes.

15 Q Would that person have been Love Charles? 15 Q Would you have considered him your direct

16 A Yes. 16 supervisor?

17 Q Have you performed field manager work for the |17 A No.

18 Michigan Department of Transportation as a BBF |18 Q Inyour employment with BBF, have you ever taken an

19 employee? 19 office technician training course?

20 A Would you repeat that? 20 A Yes.

21 Q Yes. Have you used the field manager software in |21 Q When was that?

22 doing work for Michigan Department of 22 A Oh, man. I've taken it twice now. Itook it in

23 Transportation as a BBF employee? 23 maybe 2008 or 2009 and then again in 2010,

24 A Yes. |24 somewhere around there. I don't recall the years.

25 Q Would that have been on the same projects you |25 Q To your knowledge, is your certification currently
Page 18 Page 20

1 performed office technician duties on? 1 up to date?

2 A Yes. 2 A Yes.

3 Q Areyou familiar with Victor Judnic? 3 Q Do you recall who taught the training course in

4 A Yes. 4 20087

5 Q How do you know Mr. Judnic? 5 A Both years, Fishbeck.

6 A Iworked as an office tech for Mr. Judnic at the 6 Q Do you recall how long the 2008 course lasted?

7 Detroit TSC. Well, right now I can't recall the 7 A A week,

8 dates but it was in 2005, 2006, I believe. AndI | 8 Q And could you briefly describe the course?

9 was at the Detroit TSC from, say, 2006 until 2009. | 9 A Well, they had a job set up more or less on the
10 Q Did you first meet him in 2005 or did you know him |10 computer and we went in, we posted the IDRs, we
11 from -- 11 posted tested material. Well, we did the posting,
12 A Yes, that was my first time meeting him, yes. 12 yes, of tested material, we filed, we set up the
13 Q Do you recall approximately how long you worked as |13 job filing system. There's a certain way that the
14 an office technician for Mr. Judnic? 14 State wants the filing system set up. We set up
15 A Well, like I said, it was on and off because I also |15 the filing system and we were to -- the items that
16 worked two projects for Mr. Judnic. Iworked on |16  we were to mail to Lansing, you know, the paperwork
17 Jefferson Avenue between Cobo Hall and whatis |17 and all. We didn't mail it to Lansing but it was
18 that, 696 -- I mean 375. We did a camera, 18 told to us what was to go to Lansing and we ended
19 surveillance cameras we put up, we installed. And |19 up going through the whole field manager process
20 I also worked for -- what was the other one? Oh, |20 and finaled the job out. That was the test. The
21 Seven Mile and Van Dyke traffic signal job. 21 test was to -- they gave us information, we were to
22 Q When was the last time you spoke with Mr. Judnic, |22 post it and in each step, like each more or less
23 if you recall? 23 step, you had a number that when we turned in, say,
24 A Either the first part of this year or the latter 24 your estimate, they had an estimate number and if
25 part of last year. I think I saw liim at Detroit 25  your number matched the estimate number, then you'd
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Page 21 Page 23 1
1 move on to the next step. And at the end, your 1 adjustments or corrections to, you know, what was
2 number had to match their number or, you know, you | 2 already done. Like some things that weren't
3 didn't pass -- well, you missed something. Soit's | 3 posted, I was to go in and find out -- get in touch
4 basically the same thing we would do in the office | 4 with the contractors and try to get the information
5 tech in a State office or a consultant's office, 5 for testing materials that weren't posted. That's
6 you know. 6 my understanding of the job. But I never looked at
7 Q Do you recall how long the training course in 2010 | 7 the job, never saw the job, just heard about it.
8 lasted? 8 Q Did you take the second training course before the
9 A A week. 9 Michigan Avenue job?
10 Q Did you attend the entire week? 10 A Yes.
11 A Yes, Idid. 11 Q And do you recall if it was the Detroit TSC that
12 Q Was the training course similar to the 2008 12 was asking you to take the 2010 training course?
13 course? 13 A 1believe, I'm not sure, I think it was the Port
14 A It was very similar. 14 Huron job. I want to almost say by the time the
15 Q Why did you take the course in 2010? 15 Detroit TSC job on Michigan Avenue started, that
16 A Twas told by Bellandra that she was told that I 16 was in June or something and I took the course in
17 had to take the course because I had not -- the 17 like February. So might have been February of 2010
18 first one that I took, supposedly they didn't have |18 and February of 2010 when the job started on
19 record of it. They didn't have record that T had |19 Michigan Avenue. I'm sorry, not February of 2010
20 taken the course and that the State didn't have 20 but June, 2010. But Itook the office tech course
21 record that I had taken the course. 21 in the winter, you know, in the wintertime.
22 So in order to get, I think it was 22 Q Do you have any evidence that Victor Judnic had
23 the - I believe it was the Port Huron job, it was |23 requested that you took that 2010 course?
|24 required that I had office tech, take the course, 24 A I do not know. o -
25 get certified in office tech and they were informed |25 Q Do you know who the project manager was going to be
Page 22 Page 24
1 that, you know, that I had had it and I was still 1 on the Port Huron job?
2 certified but I was required to take it again, 2 A No. The only thing I know -- the TSC manager,
3 $0... 3 Larry, and I have worked with him before.
4 Q Do yourecall who at MDOT told Ms. Foster that? | 4 Q Do you know if BBF paid for this 2010 course?
5 A No. 5 A Tguessso. Idon'tknow. No, I don't know,
6 Q Since 2010, have you been required to take any 6 Q Youdon't know?
7 additional office technician training? 7 A No. No.
8 A No. 8 Q Did anyone ever explain to you that Arra contracts
9 Q Not even a partial course? 9 had heightened scrutiny of project records?
10 A They don't offer partial courses, as far as I know. |10 MR. WILLIAMS: Objection, lack of
11 That's what she asked when I -- 2010 if it was 11 foundation, assumes facts not in evidence and calls
12 possible for me to take a partial course and they |12 for hearsay.
13 said no, they did not offer the partial course, 13 MR. DITTENBER: You can still answer.
14 Q Do you know if the project that your services were |14 MR. WILLIAMS: If you can answer.
15 needed on was an Arra contract, A-r-r-a? 15 A No.
16 A A-rr-a. I believe so. Ithink the Michigan 16 Q Are you aware whether your work on MDOT projects
17 Avenue was. I believe so. I'm not sure. 17 has been reviewed by other consulting firms?
18 Q You stated that it was possibly a Port Huron job |18 A Yes. The one on Michigan Avenue was reviewed by
19 that -- 19 URS and it was reviewed by the State of Michigan,
20 A Oh, you're talking about -- 20 Jeff Rosecloth (ph), if I said it right. The State
21 Q --needed your services? 21 of Michigan for the consultant jobs, well, maybe
22 A Ob, the Port Huron job was, from what I understood, |22 also for the State of Michigan jobs but definitely
23 was to go in and not do field manager. Field 23 for the consultant jobs, the State of Michigan
24 manager was already done. I was to go in, from |24 reviews them before the job is completed,
25  what I understand, check what was done and make any |25 considered final for the final paperwork. And the
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1 Michigan Avenue, I've already submitted the final . STATE OF MIGHIGAN) .
. 2 COUNTY OF OAKLAND)
2 paperwork and it has been approved by the State.
3 Q Did you perform office technician work on a pump 3 CERTIFICATE OF NOTRRY PUBLIC
4  station job out of the Detroit TSC? 4 T, Robin V. Darmbrack,
5 A YGS, I1did. Yes. 5 Certified Shorthand Reporter, Notary Public,
6 Q Do you know if your work was reviewed on that | © Oakland County, Michigan, certify the witness
7 ]Ob? 7 whose deposition was taken before me on
8 A 1didnot complete that job. Ileft the Detroit 8 Noveuber 14, 2012 was by me cautioned and
9 TSC before thejob was finaled, 9 sworn to testify the truth, that the testimony
10 Q Do you know who would have completed that job? |10 contained in the deposition was recorded by means
11 A No, Idon't. Someone from the -- I guess someone |11 of stenography, was reduced to a typewritten form
12 from the State of Michigan but I do not know who, |12 and is a true and correct transcript.
13 no. 13 I further certify I am not
14 Q It would not have been another BBF employee? |14 connected by blood or marriage to any of the
15 A No. BBF was no longer in that office, I don't 15 parties, their agents or attorneys; that I am
16 think. 16 not an employee of any of them, nor interested
17 Q And do you know if the portion of that job that you |17 directly or indirectly in the matter in
18 did complete was reviewed by another consulting |18 controversy,
19 COInpany? 19 IN WITNESS WHEREQOF, I have
20 A Idon't know. 20 hereunto set my hand and affixed my notarial
21 Q Do you recall who the project manager for MDOT |21 seal in the County of Ohklapl,/state of
22 would have been on the pump station job? 22 Michigan, this Q/L , 2012,
23 A Victor Judnic, I believe., 23
|24 Q After you took the 2010 course, were you allowed to | 24 0 A N 8
25 continue to perform office technician duties for |5 RV Ay ey i A A
Page 26
1 MDOT projects?
2 A Yes.
3 Q Are you still performing those duties today?
4 A No.
5 MR. DITTENBER: Can [ have justa
6 moment, please, off the record?
7 (A short break was taken),
8 Q Back on the record. Mr. Stewart, did you have any
9 physical evidence that you took the 2008 course?
10 A Would you explain that? What do you mean?
11 Q Did you receive a certificate, for example?
12 A Yes, Idid.
13 Q Did MDOT request that you provide that certificate
14 in 20087
15 A You would have to ask Mrs. Foster because they
16 didn't ask it of me.
17 Q And if you know, did Ms. Foster provide that
18 certificate?
19 A Ithink so. She has it on record. She has it in
20 my file.
21 MR. DITTENBER: That's all the questions
22 I have. Thank you.
23 ---
24 (Deposition was concluded at 10:39 a.m.).
25 ---
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